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STATEMENT FROM THE MANAGEMENT

EEE®RES

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of China
Investment and Finance Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) is pleased to announce the
audited consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2016 (the “Year”).

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group recorded gross
proceeds from disposal of securities of approximately HK$151.7
million, representing a decrease of approximately 56.6%, as
compared to the amount of approximately HK$349.3 million for
the last year. The Group recorded in revenue of approximately
HK$3.0 million, representing a decrease of approximately 75.4%
as compared to the amount of approximately HK$12.2 million for
the last year. The Company recorded a profit attributable to the
owners of the Company for the year amounted to approximately
HK$35.7 million (2015: approximately HK$0.2 million). The
audited consolidated net assets of the Group as of 31 March 2016
amounted to approximately HK$976.3 million (2015: approximately
HK$522.2 million). The net asset per share of the Group was
amounted to approximately HK$0.52 (2015: approximately
HK$0.57). The decrease in net asset value per share of the
Company over the Year was principally resulted from (i) the
placement of 130,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company at
par value of HK$0.01 each at a subscription price of HK$0.275
per share completed in June 2015; (ii) the share consolidation
and open offer as mentioned in the heading of “Capital Structure”
below; and the total comprehensive income attributable to owners
of the Company for the Year of approximately HK$7.5 million.

The net profit significantly improved from approximately HK$0.2
million for year ended 31 March 2015 to approximately HK$35.7
million for the Year mainly attributable to the aggregate effect of
the increase in net profit on investment in listed securities from
approximately HK$9.3 million for the year ended 31 March 2015 to
approximately HK$27.2 million for the Year, the increase in profit
on disposal of unlisted investments from approximately HK$10.5
million to approximately HK$23.9 million* for the Year and the
decrease in administrative expenses from approximately HK$24.8
million for the year ended 31 March 2015 to approximately
HK$12.8 million for the Year.

*

Included in the amount of HK$23.9 million was profit via disposal of
subsidiaries holding unlisted investments of approximately HK$18.0
million.
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STATEMENT FROM THE MANAGEMENT

BEEE®RES

Investment Review
As at 31 March 2016, the Group’s major investments were as

follows:
Investments Description
RE Bt

Listed equities
A

Direct investment in unlisted equities

RIELETRAZEERE

Total HK$630.1 million
&5t 630,100,0007% 7t

The investment portfolio as at 31 March 2016 of the Group
mainly comprises of unlisted securities and listed securities in
Hong Kong and China. The investment portfolio of the Company
is of approximately HK$630.1 million. As a whole, the portfolio
was carefully managed and being fully diversified to minimise
commercial risk resulting from over concentration of the investment
of the Group in any single industry.

Price Risk

The Group is exposed to financial assets price risks as investments
held by the Group are classified on the consolidated statement of
financial position as financial assets held for trading and available-
for-sale (“AFS”) financial assets. To manage its price risk arising
from investments in financial assets, the Group diversifies its
portfolio. If the financial assets price of the respective investments
held by the Group as financial assets held for trading were higher
or lower by 5% as at 31 March 2016, the Group’s profit for the year
would increase by approximately HK$26.2 million (2015: HK$1.9
million) or decrease by approximately HK$26.2 million (2015:
Changed to loss of approximately HK$1.7 million). If the price of
the respective investments held by the Group as AFS financial
assets were higher or lower by 5% as at 31 March 2016 (2015:
5%), the Group’s equity as at 31 March 2016 would increase or
decrease by approximately HK$5.3 million (2015: HK$10.9 million).

REDE
RIE-—RF=ZA=1+—HB AEBZZEREWT

HK$524.3 million of a portfolio of listed shares in twenty five companies
R+ AR AT 2524,300,000% T L&D 4AEE

HK$105.8 million in two direct investments in unlisted equities securities
MIBIE E TR 2 E# 1% & 105,800,000/ 7T
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STATEMENT FROM THE MANAGEMENT

EEE®RES

Prospects

We expect the global market will continue to face greater
challenges and full of uncertainty, developed economies are
beginning to have signs of recovery, but the developing economies
also have trends of adjustment. Meanwhile, China is also facing a
slowdown in economic growth, economic structure has undergone
significant changes during the transition from medium to long term,
crisis and opportunities coexist.

The Directors will continue to take a prudent approach in managing
the Group’s investment portfolio and develop the investment
strategies. Given the increasing influence of China against
the global economy, the Group will still be based mainly on
Chinese economy, the Group will continue to look for investment
opportunities which offer outstanding returns under the acceptable
risk in the portfolio of the Group.

The Company would consider investing in certain unlisted
securities and listed securities with high potential in order to
diversify further market risk.

Dividend
The Board has resolved not to recommend a payment of final
dividend.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had margin payables to financial
institutions of approximately HK$7.6 million (2015: Nil). The Group
had bank balances and cash on hand of approximately HK$224.8
million (2015: HK$75.2 million), which was mainly placed in bank
and other financial institutions as deposits.
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STATEMENT FROM THE MANAGEMENT
BEEBERESE

Capital Structure

During the Year, the Company has adopted the following capital

exercises:

(a)

On 20 January 2015, the Company proposed to effect

the capital reduction of issued shares and sub-division of

unissued shares which has become effective on 21 May 2015.

The capital reduction of issued shares and sub-division of

unissued shares involved the following:

(i)

(iii)

the paid-up capital of each of the issued shares be
reduced from HK$0.20 to HK$0.01 per issued share by
cancelling the paid-up capital to the extent of HK$0.19
per issued share by way of a reduction of capital, so as
to form new shares with par value of HK$0.01 each;

the credit arising from the capital reduction be applied
to offset the entire accumulated losses of the Company
as at the effective date of the capital reduction with the
remaining balance of such credit (if any) to be transferred
to the capital reduction reserve account of the Company
or other reserve account of the Company which may be
utilised by the directors of the Company as a distributable
reserve in accordance with all applicable laws and the
memorandum and articles of association of the Company
and as the board of directors considers appropriate; and

immediately following the capital reduction, each of
the authorised but unissued shares with par value of
HK$0.20 each be subdivided into twenty unissued new
shares with par value of HK$0.01 each, and such new
shares shall rank pari passu in all respects with each
other and have rights and privileges and be subject to the
restrictions contained in the memorandum and articles of
association of the Company.
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STATEMENT FROM THE MANAGEMENT
EEERESE

(b)

On 21 May 2015, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement (the “Subscription Agreement”) to issue and allot
a total of 130,000,000 shares (“Subscription Shares”) at par
value of HK$0.01 each in the Company to Wonder Time
Holdings Limited (“Wonder Time”) at a price of HK$0.275 (the
“Subscription Price”) per Subscription Share (“Subscription”).
These new shares rank pari passu in all respect with the then
existing shares. This transaction has been completed on 2
June 2015.

As at the date of the Subscription Agreement, the entire
issued share capital of Wonder Time was beneficially owned
by Lerado Group (Holdings) Company Limited (“Lerado”,
now known as Lerado Financial Group Company Limited),
a company listed on main board of the Stock Exchange. To
the best knowledge, information and belief of the Directors
having made all reasonable enquiries, Wonder Time is a
professional investor (as defined in the SFO as extended by
the Professional Investor Rules). The Group is interested in
76,000,000 shares of Lerado,
8.59% of its issued share capital,

representing approximately
as at the date of the
Subscription Agreement. Save as disclosed above, each
of Wonder Time and its ultimate beneficial owner is not a
connected person of the Company.

The Subscription proceeds were intended to be used for
the general working capital of the Group and for future
investments pursuant to the investment objectives of the
Company. The aggregate gross proceeds of the Subscription
was approximately HK$35.75 million and the aggregate net
proceeds of the Subscription, after deduction of expenses,
were approximately HK$35.55 million, representing a net
issue price of approximately HK$0.273 per Subscription
Share.

(b)

RZZE-—RAFRAAZ+—H KRR ZRER
= ([REWZ]) UERARKD0.2758 T 2B
1% ([REE]) REEET RS $£130,000,000
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B A) PTRE) o A& B K 276,000,0000%
B HEEERZ HEXRENREBREHRZE
BEITRANA)8.59% © Br L X Fr# F8 & SN - Wonder
TimeRESREZHBABLIERARARZBEA
me
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& UERBEBEARRRZEEBERIERKRIEE -
R B%%IEZW% RIB A H£4/535,750,0007%

REEIE 2 FERIEFE(KHNRAXE)
= ,\,ZU 7%35,550,000/8 7T * HE RN FETEFR
REER D £90.2738 7T -



The Subscription Price of HK$0.275 per Subscription Share
represented:

(i) a discount of approximately 14.1% to the closing price of
HK$0.320 per share of the Company as quoted on the
Stock Exchange on 21 May 2015, being the date of the
Subscription Agreement;

(ii) a discount of approximately 1.8% to the average of the
closing price of HK$0.280 per share of the Company
as quoted on the Stock Exchange for the last five
consecutive trading days immediately prior to the date of
the Subscription Agreement; and

(iii) a discount of approximately 4.8% to the average closing
price of HK$0.289 per share of the Company as quoted
on the Stock Exchange for the last ten consecutive
trading days immediately prior to the date of the
Subscription Agreement.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are securities trading
and investment holding. The Board considered that the
Subscription represents a good opportunity for the Company
to raise additional funds and to widen the Company’s
shareholder base, and the terms of the Subscription
Agreement were on normal commercial terms. Accordingly,
the Directors considered that the terms of the Subscription
Agreement were fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

The net proceeds of approximately HK$35.55 million were
fully invested in listed equities.
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BEEBERESE
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China Investment and Finance Group Limited
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STATEMENT FROM THE MANAGEMENT

EEE®RES

(c) During the Year, the Company has adopted (i) share
consolidation for every five (5) shares of par value of
HK$0.01 each into one (1) consolidated shares of par value
of HK$0.05 each, and (ii) open offer to issue eight (8) offer
shares for every one (1) consolidated share. The above share
consolidation and open offer were completed on 14 December
2015 and 20 January 2016 respectively. As a result, the
Company issued share capital changed from 1,045,370,000
shares of par value of HK$0.01 each as at 13 December 2015
to 1,881,666,000 shares of HK$0.05 each as at 20 January
2016, and there was no further change in the Company’s
share capital since then. Approximately HK$418.1 million
(before expenses) was raised by the open offer.

Gearing Ratio
The gearing ratio (defined as total interest-bearing liabilities/total
equity) was 0.8% (2015: Nil).

Employees

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group had retained
fourteen employees (2015: eleven employees). Total staff costs
of the Group, excluding directors’ remuneration, for the year
under review amounted to approximately HK$3.3 million (2015:
approximately HK$4.9 million). Staff remuneration packages were
in line with the prevailing market practice and were determined
on the basis of the performance and experience of individual
employee.

CHARGES ON ASSETS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2016, the Group has pledged listed securities of
approximately HK$48.1 million (2015: Nil) to secure the margin
payables of approximately HK$7.6 million (2015: Nil). The Group
did not have significant contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2016
and 2015.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Group
and within the knowledge of its directors, the board of directors
confirms that the Group has complied with the public float
requirement of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 March 2016.
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BEEE®RES

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF SHARES
For the year ended 31 March 2016, neither the Company nor
its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s shares.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company had reviewed the
consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2016, including the accounting principles and accounting practices
adopted by the Company, and discussed matters relating to
auditing, internal controls, financial reporting, the adequacy of
resources, qualification and experience of staff.

The audit committee of the Group consists of four independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. HON Leung, Mr. LUK Simon,

Mr. TSANG Hin Man Terence, and Ms. LIU Xiaoyin

By Order of the Board
China Investment and Finance Group Limited

CHAN Cheong Yee
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 22 June 2016
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China Investment and Finance Group Limited
P BE kK B B & B B R A #A

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

EE/EMT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. CHAN Cheong Yee (“Mr. Chan”), aged 52, was appointed
as an executive Director on 8 March 2011. He is one of the
responsible officers of China Everbright Securities (HK) Limited.
Mr. Chan is currently a licensed person to carry out type 1
(dealing in securities), type 2 (dealing in futures contracts),
type 3 (leveraged foreign exchange trading) and type 9 (asset
management) regulated activities under the SFO. Mr. Chan
obtained a Bachelor of Science degree from the College of
Business Administration of the University of South Florida in the
United States of America. Mr. Chan is experienced in dealing in
securities, fund management, corporate management, corporate
finance and managing listed investment companies under Chapter
21 of the Listing Rules of Hong Kong Stock Exchanges.

Since June 2003, Mr. Chan joined China Innovation Investment
Limited (stock code: 1217), an investment company listed on the
Stock Exchange, as executive director. Mr. Chan was appointed
as an independent non-executive director of Bingo Group Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8220), a company listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of the Stock Exchange, in August 2007,
and was re-designated as an executive director of Bingo Group
Holdings Limited in April 2009. Mr. Chan was appointed as an
executive director of China Investment Development Limited (stock
code: 204), an investment company listed on the Stock Exchange,
in May 2012. Mr. Chan was appointed as an executive director of
Capital VC Limited (stock code: 2324), an investment company
listed on the Stock Exchange, in November 2012. Mr. Chan was
appointed as an executive director of Alpha Returns Group PLC, an
investment company listed on AIM of London Stock Exchange, in
May 2013. Mr. Chan was also appointed as an executive director of
China New Economy Fund Limited (stock code: 80), an investment
company listed on the Stock Exchange, in June 2013. Mr. Chan
was appointed as an executive director of China Trends Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8171), a company listed on GEM in February
2016.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LIAO Jintian (“Mr. Liao”), aged 47, has been a non-executive
Director since 23 March 2012. Mr. Liao is a council member of the
China National Furniture Association (FE X E#E), an executive
committee member of Shunde Gong Shan Lian (JE{E T Bk (42w
2)), a vice-president of Shunde Furniture Association (JBZZRE
%), a vice-president of Shunde Longjiang Chamber (JEE5E/THE
®) and a director of the Longjiang Charity Association. Mr. Liao is
also the executive director and legal representative of Guangdong
Xie Feng Financial Guarantee Co., Ltd. (BHRH L@ EEREGEA
7l), the chairman and legal representative of Guangdong Jingongzi
Trading and Economic Development Co., Ltd. (ER& A TEEZHRE
ABR7Ad]). Mr. Liao has over 10 years of experience in wide scope
of businesses including trading, finance, property development and

project investment.

Ms. LEE Kar Ying (“Ms. Lee”), aged 28, was appointed as a non-
executive Director on 20 March 2015. She holds a Bachelor of Arts
degree in Arts and Science in Sociology of University of Southern
California in the United States of America. Ms. Lee has over 4

years’ experience in hospitality industry.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. TSANG Hin Man Terence (“Mr. Tsang”), aged 54, has been
an independent nonexecutive Director since 1 April 2014. He was
admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 1993 and he is currently
the sole proprietor of H. M. Tsang & Co. Mr. Tsang obtained a
bachelor’s degree in science (BSc.) from the University College
London, the University of London. He also holds a bachelor’s
degree in law (LLB.) from the University of Westminster, United
Kingdom. Mr. Tsang serves as an independent non-executive
director of Lee & Man Handbags Holding Limited (Stock Code:
1488) and Differ Group Holding Company Limited (Stock Code:
8056). He has resigned as a non-executive director of Winto Group
(Holdings) Limited (Stock Code: 8238) with effect from 9 May 2016.
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Mr. LUK Simon (“Mr. Luk”), aged 50, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 2 July 2014. He is a
responsible officer for the regulated activities of asset management
(Type 9) under the Securities and Futures Ordinance since 2003.
Mr. Luk has over 10 years’ experience in asset management and
investment advising. Mr. Luk worked in various investment advising
companies.

Since November 2013, Mr. Luk is the responsible officer of W.
Falcon Asset Management (Asia) Limited. During the period from
2011 to November 2013, Mr. Luk was a responsible officer of
Capital Focus Asset Management Limited. Before that, Mr. Luk was
a founder and responsible officer of Money Concepts (Asia) Ltd.
During the period of 2000 to 2009, Mr. Luk managed various funds
and private equity portfolios. Mr. Luk was appointed as a non-
executive director of Shaanxi Northwest New Technology Industry
Company Limited (Stock code: 8258) since September 2012 until
12 August 2014. Mr. Luk was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of Infinity Chemical Holdings Company Limited
(Stock code: 640) since November 2013.

Ms. LIU Xiaoyin (“Ms. Liu”), aged 31, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 20 March 2015. She is
currently the assistant to the general manager of a China based
investment company. She has over 5 years solid investment and
management experience.

Mr. HON Leung (“Mr. Hon”), aged 33, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 20 November 2015. He is
the founder of William Hon & Co, and a certified public accountant
(practising) in Hong Kong, with 8 years of professional practice
experience. He possess solid finance and accounting knowledge.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

The Board presents their annual report and the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of subsidiaries are securities trading and
investment holding.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

For the year ended 31 March 2016 and 2015, the Group’s turnover
and results were mainly derived from the interest income and
dividend income from investment holding. The directors consider
that these activities constitute one and the only business segment
since these transactions are subject to common risks and returns.
The management monitors the operating results of its business
for the purpose of making decision about resource allocation
and performance assessment. Given the nature of the Group’s
operation is investment holding, it is not considered meaningful to
provide a business segment analysis of operating losses. Details of
the segment information are set out in note 9 to the consolidated

financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

As the Group’s operation is investment holding, there was
no information regarding major customers and suppliers as
determined by the Group.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016 and
the state of affairs of the Group as at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 37 to 40. The Directors do not
recommend the payment of a dividend for the year ended 31 March
2016 (2015: HKS$Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in the share capital of the Group during the
year are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTIONS

The existing share option scheme of the Company was approved
and adopted by shareholders’ resolution at the annual general
meeting held on 29 August 2013 (the “Option Scheme”), unless
otherwise cancelled or amended subject to resolution passed at
general meeting of the Company the Option Scheme will remain
in force for ten years from 29 August 2013. As at 31 March 2016,
the remaining life of the Option Scheme was approximately 7 years
and 5 months.

The purpose of the Option Scheme is to provided incentive or
reward to Participants (as defined below) for their contribution to,
and continuing efforts to promote the interests of, the Group.

Eligible participants (the “Participants”) of the Option Scheme
include any employees of the Group (including any directors,
whether executive or non-executive and whether independent
or not, of the Company or any Subsidiary) and any distributor,
contractor, business partner, promoter, service provider, customer,
supplier, consultant, agent and adviser or any person who, in the
sole discretion of the Board, has contributed or may contribute to
the Group eligible for Options under the Option Scheme.

Without prior separate approval from the Company’s shareholders,
(i) the total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Company must not exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company as at the date of the shareholders’ approval
of the option limit; and (ii) the maximum number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted to each
Participant under the Option Scheme (including both exercised
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not (when
aggregated with any shares of the Company subject to options
granted during such period under any other share option scheme(s)
of the Company) exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue
for any time being.
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Any grant of options to any directors, chief executive or substantive
shareholders (as such terms as defined in the Listing Rules) of
the Company, or any of their respective associates under the
Option Scheme or any other share option scheme of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries shall be subject to the prior approval of
the independent non-executive directors or shareholders of the
Company as the case may be. Without prior separate approval
from the Company’s shareholders, the maximum number of shares
issued and to be issued in respect of which options granted and
may be granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company in the 12-month period up
to and including the date of such grant shall not (i) exceed 0.1%
of the shares of the Company in issue on the date of such grant;
and (ii) have an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the
shares of the Company as stated in the daily quotations sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant, in excess of
HK$5 million.

Under the Option Scheme, the options granted may be accepted
by the participants concerned for a period of twenty-one days from
the date of such offer or such shorter period as the Board may
from time to time determine. An option shall be regarded as having
been accepted when the Company receives from the Participant
the duplicate of the offer letter duly signed by the Participant
together with a remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1 as
consideration for the grant of option. Options may be exercised in
accordance with the terms of the Option Scheme at any time not
exceeding a period of ten years from the date on which the share
option is granted. The subscription price for the shares on the
exercise of an option under the Option Scheme shall be determined
by the Board in its absolute discretion but in any event shall not
less than the highest of: (i) the closing price of the Company’s
share as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant which must be a business day; (ii)
the average closing price of the Company’s share as stated in the
daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company’s share.

No share options were granted, lapsed, exercised or expired under
the Option Scheme since 29 August 2013. There were 11,631,600
shares, representing approximately 0.62% of total issued share
capital of the Company, available for issue under the Option
Scheme as at the date of this Annual Report.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group during the year are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page
41 of this report and other details of the reserves of the Group is
set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands, share premium
of the Company is distributable to the shareholders of the
Company subject to the provisions of the Memorandum and
Articles of Association and a statutory solvency test. The Articles
of Association provide that an ordinary resolution passed by the
shareholders of the Company is required for any distribution out
of the share premium account. The Company’s reserves available
for distribution comprise the share premium, accumulated profits
and valuation reserve derived from the available-for-sale financial
assets. In the opinion of the Board, the Company’s reserves
available for distribution to the shareholders at 31 March 2016 were
approximately HK$849,828,000.

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Group during the year and up to the date of
this report are:

Executive Director
Mr. CHAN Cheong Yee

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. LIAO Jintian

Ms. LEE Kar Ying

Mr. WU Qi (Appointed on 3 July 2015)

Mr. ZHOU Han Jie (Resigned on 1 June 2015)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. TSANG Hin Man Terence

Mr. LUK Simon

Ms. LIU Xiaoyin

Mr. HON Leung (Appointed on 20 November 2015)
Mr. HA Tak Kong (Resigned on 15 September 2015)

No director has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).
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In accordance with Article 88 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, Mr. LIAO Jintian, Mr. TSANG Hin Man Terence, Mr. LUK
Simon and Ms. LIU Xiaoyin shall retire by rotation. In addition to
Mr. TSANG Hin Man Terence, who has decided not to stand for re-
election, all other retiring Directors being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or its subsidiary was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the

year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
IN EQUITY OR DEBT SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2016, the interests and short positions of
the directors and chief executives in the ordinary shares and
underlying shares of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”) (including interest which they are deemed
or taken to have under such provisions of the SFO)), as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transaction by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) were as follows:
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Save as disclosed above, none of the directors and chief
executives had any interests in equity or debt securities of the
Company or of any of its associated corporations which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notifiable to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2016, to the best knowledge of the Board and
chief executives of the Company, the following persons (other than
any directors or chief executive of the Company) were substantial
shareholders of the Company and had interests or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO:

Classictime Investments Limited (Note)
Classictime Investments Limited (/#77%)

Note: Classictime Investments Limited is wholly-owned by Jun Yang

Financial Holdings Limited, the shares of which are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified of
any other person (other than directors or chief executive of the
Company) who had an interest or a short position in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO as at 31 March 2016.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Code”)
throughout the year ended 31 March 2016, with deviations from
Provisions A.2.1, A.4.1 and A.6.7 of the Code.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Company’s
directors or members of its management to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debt securities (including
debentures) of the Company or any other body corporate.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had no material transactions with its related
parties during the year.

The Directors conducted review of the related party transactions
of the Group during the year and were not aware any transaction
requiring disclosure of connected transactions in accordance with
the requirements of the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were
entered into or existed during the year.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME
Details of the retirement benefits scheme are set out in note 32 to
the consolidated financial statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Group and
within the knowledge of its directors, the Company has complied
with the public float requirement of the Listing Rules for the year
ended 31 March 2016.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF SHARES
For the year ended 31 March 2016, neither the Group nor
its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Group’s
Articles of Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to the existing shareholders.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Details of the five years financial summary in relation to the
Group’s results and assets and liabilities are set out in page 128.
This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.

Annual R rt
2015/16 @ ;poﬁ

HEALIRZREERS

BESMBRRMEIMAEEEI  REERAFE
NI EEEEALTETENEARS -

EFCHAEEFANBEALRZETER  BY
TRHBEFMBRBELTRUREAFREIZIRENR
5o

EEAN
FRWMETTRFAAMBARAEE R PRAEMEL
BHEBZEERITHALD -

R AKE R 5T E
RAKEHE 8 2 FIERNER A M MRM 2 -

ARBRE
REAGSEESZAHARRBEESRAA - ARFR
BE-T - R"F-A=-tHLEFE-—EBHETLWR
AIZ DRBRERTE -

]

BE - LERERRHG
RBEE-F-—AF=ZA=+—ALFE FEELH
MEBARHMERE  HEXBEAR UM EHES -

BERBERE
AEEZAKERANIAEHEENY BBEBE
BZRE  REARRNARLOARGRREL2RE
IR -

IFUMBRE
AEBEEARAERABZ AFHBHERNF128
H-BEXTEREERGEMBREZ 515 -

21



29 China Investment and Finance Group Limited
P BE kK B B & B B R A #A

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the independent
non-executive Directors to be independent.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year have been audited by Elite Partners CPA Limited. Elite
Partners CPA Limited retires, and being eligible, offers itself for
reappointment. A resolution for reappointment of Elite Partners
CPA Limited as auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the
forthcoming AGM.

By Order of the Board

CHAN Cheong Yee
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 22 June 2016
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The Company recognises that good corporate governance
standards maintained throughout the Group serve as an effective
risk management tool for the Company. The board of Directors of
the Company (the “Board”) is committed to lead the Group growing
in an efficient manner followed by corporate missions in terms
of business strategies and improved operational planning and
procedures which are enforced under high corporate governance
standard.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the Corporate Governance Code
as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Code”) throughout the year
ended 31 March 2016, with deviations from Provisions A.2.1, A.4.1
and A.6.7 of the Code.

Pursuant to Provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer should be separated and
should not be performed by the same individual. The division of
responsibilities between the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer should be clearly established and set out in writing. The
Board is in the process of locating an appropriate person to fill the
vacancy of the Chief Executive Officer of the Company as soon as
practicable.

Pursuant to Provision A.4.1 of the Code, non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.
None of the non-executive Directors of the Company were
appointed for a specific term. Since all the Directors of the
Company are subject to retirement by rotation according to the
provisions under article 88 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, the Company considers that sufficient measures have
been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate governance
practices are no less exacting than those in the Code.

In addition, pursuant to Provision A.6.7 of the Code, independent
non-executive directors and other non-executive directors should
attend general meetings. Certain independent non-executive
Directors and non-executive Directors could not attend all general
meetings held in the year ended 31 March 2016 due to other
business commitments.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code for securities
transactions by Directors of the Group. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, the Group confirmed that all Directors have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

The Board of the Group is collectively responsible for overseeing
the management of the business and affairs of the Group with the
objective of enhancing shareholders value. The Board comprises
a total of eight Directors, with one executive Director, three
non-executive Directors and four independent non-executive
Directors as at 31 March 2016. One of the independent non-
executive Directors, Mr. HON Leung, has appropriate professional
qualifications in accounting pursuant to Rule 3.10 of the Listing
Rules. Each of the independent non-executive Directors has made
an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Group is of the view that all independent
non-executive Directors meet the independence guidelines
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are independent
in accordance with the terms of the guidelines. All Directors
have access to the Company Secretary for advise on the board
procedures and regulatory matters. Any Director and member of
audit committee of the Group may take independent professional
advice if they so wish at the expense of the Group, as arranged by
the Company Secretary.
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Function

In view of the simple structure of the Group, all significant decision
making is carried out by the executive Director and the Chairman of
the Board while the day-to-day investment decision is based on the
professional recommendation of the investment manager.

None of the existing non-executive Directors of the Group is
appointed for a specific term. This constitutes a deviation from
the code provision A.4.1 of the Code. However, one-third of the
Directors of the Company (both executive and non-executive) are
subject to retirement by rotation at each annual general meeting
under the articles of association of the Group. As such, the Group
considers that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that
the Group’s corporate governance practices are similar to those in
the Code.

All Directors have made full and active contribution to the affairs
of the Board and the Board always acts in the best interests of the
Group. During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Board convened
a total of thirty one meetings. The Directors can attend meetings
in persons or through other means of electronic communication
in accordance with the articles of association of the Group. The
number of Board meetings attended by each Director during the
year ended 31 March 2016 is set out in the following table. Figure
in brackets indicates the maximum number of meetings in the
period in which the individual was a Director.
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Name of Directors

Executive Director
Mr. CHAN Cheong Yee

Non-executive Directors

Mr. LIAO Jintian

Ms. LEE Kar Ying

Mr. WU Qi (appointed on 3 July 2015)

Mr. ZHOU Han Jie (resigned on 1 June 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. TSANG Hin Man Terence

Mr. LUK Simon

Ms. LIU Xiaoyin

Mr. HON Leung (appointed on 20 November 2015)
Mr. HA Tak Kong (resigned on 15 September 2015)

To the best knowledge of the Board, there is no financial, business
or family relationship among the members of the Board as at
31 March 2016. All of them are free to exercise their individual
judgments.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. CHAN Kwan Pak was appointed as the Company Secretary
of the Company on 16 March 2015. He reports to the Chairman
of the Company and assists the Board in functioning effectively
and efficiently. He has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the year ended 31 March 2016.

Attendance
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has a remuneration committee for determining the
remuneration of the Directors. The members of the remuneration
committee are: Ms. LIU Xiaoyin (appointed on 15 September
2015), Mr. HA Tak Kong (resigned on 15 September 2015), Mr.
LIAO Jintian, Mr. LUK Simon and Mr. HON Leung (appointed on
20 November 2015). During the year ended 31 March 2016, the
committee held two meetings to discuss remuneration related
matters. The number of meetings attended by each committee
member during the year ended 31 March 2016 is set out in the
following table. Figure in brackets indicates the maximum number
of meetings in the period in which the individual was a committee

member.

Ms. LIU Xiaoyin BlEH L+
Mr. LIAO Jintian BN E
Mr. LUK Simon BPER2EAE
Mr. HON Leung oA
Mr. HA Tak Kong BRI EE

Ms. LIU Xiaoyin is the chairman of the remuneration committee.
The remuneration committee is responsible for the following
functions: determining the policy for remuneration of directors and
senior management, assessing performance of executive directors,
as well as determining the emolument policy of the Company. No
director or any of his associated director, and executive is involved

in deciding his own remuneration.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee was set up in March 2012. The
members of the nomination committee are Ms. LIU Xiaoyin
(appointed on 15 September 2015), Mr. HA Tak Kong (resigned
on 15 September 2015), Mr. LIAO Jintian, Mr. TSANG Hin Man
Terence and Mr. HON Leung (appointed on 20 November 2015).
Ms. LIU Xiaoyin, is the chairman of the nomination committee.
During the year ended 31 March 2016, the committee held two
meetings to discuss nomination related matters. The number of
meetings attended by each committee member during the year
ended 31 March 2016 is set out in the following table. Figure in
brackets indicates the maximum number of meetings in the period
in which the individual was a committee member.

Ms. LIU Xiaoyin BlEH L+
Mr. LIAO Jintian BN E
Mr. TSANG Hin Man Terence BEXEE
Mr. HON Leung oA

Mr. HA Tak Kong ElEIEE

The primary function of the nomination committee is to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Group’s corporate strategy.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee comprises the following independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. HON Leung (appointed on 20
November 2015), Mr. HA Tak Kong (resigned on 15 September
2015), Mr. TSANG Hin Man Terence, Mr. LUK Simon and
Ms. LIU Xiaoyin (appointed on 15 September 2015). Mr. HON
Leung serves as the chairman of the audit committee. No member
of the audit committee is a member of the former or existing auditor
of the Company. During the year ended 31 March 2016, the audit
committee held three committee meetings. The number of meetings
attended by each committee member during the year ended 31
March 2016 is set out in the following table. Figure in brackets
indicates the maximum number of meetings in the period in which
the individual was a committee member.

Mr. HON Leung Bkt

Mr. TSANG Hin Man Terence BEXEE
Mr. LUK Simon PER 2 A
Ms. LIU Xiaoyin B L+
Mr. HA Tak Kong ER/TIEE

Responsibilities of the audit committee include:

(1) to be in charge of the appointment of external auditors,

auditing expenses and any matters regarding the resignation or

dismissal of the external auditors;

(2) to discuss with the external auditors on the nature and scope

of audit prior to the commencement of the auditing procedures;

and

(3) to review the interim and annual accounts. The audit committee

has reviewed the auditing performance, the internal controls

and the audited financial statements of the Company for the

year ended 31 March 2016.
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GENERAL MEETINGS

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company held one
annual general meeting and one extraordinary general meeting.
The number of general meetings attended by each Director during
the year ended 31 March 2016 is set out in the following table.
Figure in brackets indicates the maximum number of meetings in
the period in which the individual was a Director.
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HEMBRTERIRS

IREK -~

Attendance
HERE
Mr. LIAO Jintian BiRRfE 0/(2)
Mr. CHAN Cheong Yee PREZE A 1/(2)
Ms. LEE Kar Ying 330 R 2/(2)
Mr. WU Qi (appointed on 3 July 2015) SEEE(R_E—HAFELA-HEZMT) 0/(2)
Mr. TSANG Hin Man Terence BEXISLE 1/(2)
Mr. LUK Simon PER 24 1/(2)
Ms. LIU Xiaoyin 2Rt 0/(2)
Mr. HON Leung (appointed on 20 November 2015) Bt (RZTE—HAF+—A=+HEZHF) 1/(1)
Mr. ZHOU Han Jie (resigned on 1 June 2015) BAEREE(RZZ—RFA—HFE) N/AT3E B
Mr. HA Tak Kong (resigned on 15 September 2015) ERTIARAE(R-ZZE—RAFNAT+HBET N/AT 33 A
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION EERBRE
No corporate governance committee has been established and HARYER T PEESATE ANBHESEeaaH
the Board is responsible for performing corporate governance TOEESEEe e d TRt AATES

functions. This includes developing and reviewing Company’s
policies, practices on corporate governance, training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, and the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements etc. During the
year ended 31 March 2016, the Board has reviewed the Company’s

policies and practices on corporate governance.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2016, services provided to the
Group by its external auditors, Elite Partners CPA Limited, and the
respective fees paid/payable are set out as follows:

BB &

BE-T-AFZAZ+-BLFE HEREMH
TEERAMESHTERA A AR EMERHEZRE R
B EAZERRARINMOT

HK$
BT

Elite Partners CPA Limited FTiEEesMmEEMERAR
— Audit services —BZRB 380,000
— non-assurance services —EBZ AR 23,000
403,000

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges their responsibilities for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements of the Group and ensures
that they are prepared in accordance with statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards. The Directors also ensure
the timely publication of such consolidated financial statements.
The statement of the external auditors of the Group, Elite Partners
CPA Limited, with regard to their reporting responsibilities on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 35 to 36.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT
The Board, recognising its overall responsibility in ensuring the
system of internal controls of the Group and for reviewing its
effectiveness, is committed to implementing an effective and sound
internal control system to safeguard the interests of shareholders
and the assets of the Group. Procedures have been designed
to safeguard assets against unauthorised used or disposition, to
ensure the sufficient allocation of resources and manpower and
the maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision of
reliable financial information for internal use or for publication, and
to ensure compliance with applicable law, rules and regulations.
The procedures provide a reasonable but not absolute assurance
and prevention of material untrue statements or losses, as well
as management on the interruption of the Group’s management
system and risks existing in the course of arriving at the Group’s
objectives.

The management of the Group has conducted a review on the
Group’s internal control and risk management system for the
year ended 31 March 2016 with no material weakness found. The
management will continue to improve and strengthen its control
in order to enhance the corporate governance and safeguard the
interest of its shareholders.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for convening an extraordinary general
meeting and putting forward proposals at shareholders’
meeting

The Company may also communicate with its Shareholders through
extraordinary general meetings, if and when appropriate.

Pursuant to Article 58 of the articles of association of the Company,
the Board may whenever it thinks fit call extraordinary general
meetings. Any one or more Members holding at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the company secretary of the Company, to require
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of
the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.

Pursuant to Article 89 of the articles of association of the Company,
no person other than a Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless
recommended by the Directors for election, be eligible for election
as a Director at any general meeting unless a Notice signed by
a Member (other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified
to attend and vote at the meeting for which such notice is given
of his intention to propose such person for election and also a
Notice signed by the person to be proposed of his willingness to
be elected shall have been lodged at the head office or at the
Registration Office not less than seven (7) clear days but not
more than fourteen (14) clear days before the date of the general
meeting.
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Procedures for Shareholders Putting Enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board. All
enquiries shall be in writing and sent by post to the registered
office of the Company in Hong Kong.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Code requires the Company to have a dialogue with
shareholders and it is the responsibility of the Board as a
whole to ensure that satisfactory dialogue does take place. The
primary communication channel between the Company and its
shareholders is through the publication of its interim and annual
reports. The Company’s Registrars serve the shareholders with
respect to all share registration matters. The Company’s annual
general meeting provides a useful forum for shareholders to
exchange views with the Board. The directors and management
of the Company are available to answer shareholders’ questions.
Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each
substantially separate issue, including the election of individual
director. Details of the poll voting procedures and rights of
shareholders to demand a poll are included in the circular to
shareholders dispatched together with the annual report. The
circular also includes details of the procedures and the timetable of
proposing appropriate candidates to stand for election as directors
at annual general meetings, and relevant details of proposed
resolutions, including biographies of each candidate standing for
re-election and whether such candidates are considered to be
independent.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZHENRE

P18 st ER R A R/ 6)
@ ) :LiTE PARTNERS CPA LIMITED

Certified Public Accountants

To the shareholders of
China Investment and Finance Group Limited
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Investment and Finance Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 37 to 128, which comprise the consolidated statements of
financial position as at 31 March 2016, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of financial statements that gives a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with agreed term of
engagement and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B 2B AR E

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2016 and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 22 June 2016

Yip Kai Yin
Practising Certificate Number P05131

10/F, 8 Observatory Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui, Hong Kong
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

For the year ended 31 March 2016 &2 —ZT— R F=A=+—HILFE

£ W

2016 2015
—E—XRF —T—AE
Note HK$’000 HK$ 000
B it FHERT T T

Gross proceeds from disposal of listed HERIEFEELMRS

securities held for trading Z TS RIEREE 151,695 349,285
Revenue I 2= 8 2,996 12,187
Net realised loss on disposal of financial HEREEECHMBEE

assets held for trading 2 EEEIEFE (33,864) (450)
Net realised gain on disposal of HEMNHRLERE 2EH

available-for-sale investments e FRE 5,911 10,460
Net unrealised gain on financial assets FHEBEBEZUMBEEZ

held for trading REIR IS F R 61,030 9,617
Net unrealised loss on derivative PTEMB TR Z REIREE

financial instruments - (4,767)
Other income H4th Uy 25 8 18,156 609
Administrative expenses THRAX (12,755) (24,845)
Profit from operations KRR 10 41,474 2,811
Finance costs Bl & B AN 11 (252) (66)
Profit before tax B B A % F 41,222 2,745
Income tax expense Fris B 12 (5,532) (2,553)
Profit for the year FREF 35,690 192
Profit attributable to owners N 7] BR R B AL & A

of the Company 35,690 192
Earnings per share BREF

— Basic, HK cents — E AR (GEALD 14 6.31 0.02

— Diluted, HK cents — 58 GB AL 14 6.31 0.02
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
% ’% E%—E & E ﬂ‘l_:’, é E l-l& ﬁ'_ﬁ 43;:2 For the year ended 31 March 2016 B2 =—ZF— R "F=HA=+—HILFE

2016 2015
—E—XRF —E-REF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FET
Profit for the year F A A 35,690 192
Other comprehensive income: Hh 2 HE WK :
Items that may be reclassified AJEEREREm B D EZIHA -
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translating EARERINEBEEZIELEZR
foreign operations
Exchange difference arising during the year FAEECERZEZ - 117
Reclassification adjustment relating B ERINEBERCEN
to disposal of foreign operations DT (1,044) -
(1,044) 117
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE
Net (loss)/gain arising on revaluation FRNEERATHREEREMEEZ
of available-for-sale investments (B518) /%%
during the year (19,250) 8,818
Reclassification adjustments relating to FRAHEERENERRAZ
available-for-sale investments disposed B D EAE
of during the year 2,475 (6,562)
Reclassification adjustments relating to FAMBARILERH
subsidiaries disposed of during the year ZEH A (10,324) -
(27,099) 2,256
Other comprehensive (expense)/income FREME2E (X)W
for the year, net of tax MERBE (28,143) 2,373
Total comprehensive income for the year FRAEEKREETE 7,547 2,565
Total comprehensive income attributable ARREEARGEEEKEETE
to owners of the Company 7,547 2,565
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F W
LSBT R As at 31 March 2016 R—B—AF=A=+—§
2016 2015
—E-RE —E—AHF
Note HK$’000 HK$’ 000
Kz FERT FABT
Non-current assets FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB MR 16 - 709
Deposit paid for acquisition of investments HWERES ke 17 - 20,000
Available-for-sale investments At ERE 18 105,773 122,505
105,773 143,214
Current assets REEE
Available-for-sale investments Al ERE 18 - 85,666
Derivative financial instruments PTESMT A 19 - 9,077
Financial assets held for trading REEBEZMBEE 20 524,308 38,699
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits ~ Efth U FRIE - B REBERIEE 22 138,341 141,266
Current tax assets MENTIB A E 27 =
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEBY 23 224,846 75,231
887,522 349,939
Disposal group held for sale FEHEZHESHE 24 - 32,669
887,522 382,608
Current liabilities REAE
Margin payables ERE & 25 7,618 =
Accruals st EH 1,213 737
Current tax liabilities MBHIEAE 23 192
8,854 929
Liabilities associated with disposal REHEZHESERE
group held for sale ZBf& 24 - 216
8,854 1,145
Net current assets RBEEFEE 878,668 381,463
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERRBER 984,441 524,677
Non-current liability FEREBEME
Deferred tax liability FEFIEEE 26 8,104 2,503

Net assets BEEFE 976,337 522,174
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B R R &

As at 31 March 2016 R=—ZE—RE=A=+—H

2016 2015
—E—-ANEF —E-hHE
Note HK$’000 HK$’ 000
B it FHERT T T

Capital and reserves EXRHE
Share capital & A 27 94,083 183,074
Reserves (Eeke] 29 882,254 339,100
Total equity R 976,337 522,174
Net asset value per share (in HK$) BREEFEGER) 30 0.52 0.57

The consolidated financial statements on pages 37 to 40 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 22
June 2016 and signed on its behalf by:

CHAN Cheong Yee
BRE=
Director

EF

HNEITEEFIOA 2 HEAMBHRRER T —RF
ANAZtT-PREEESRHAERRETZE  WEH T

ALTREREE:

LEE Kar Ying
3 &
Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

£ %

For the year ended 31 March 2016 &2 =2 — A "F=A=+—HIEFE

Available-
for-sale
investment
Share Share revaluation  Exchange Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve losses Total
AHLE
REEM
B R4 % B wtE ERRE 5y F “E
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TER TER TER TET TER
At 1 April 2015 RZZ-—AEMA—H 183,074 490,534 7,849 1,044 (160,327) 522,174
Profit for the year AEERH - - - = 35,690 35,690
Other comprehensive income:  H i 2 E i
Net loss arising on revaluation ~ FAEEFAIHEERE
of available-for-sale MELZBETFE
investments during the year - - (19,250) - - (19,250)
Reclassification adjustment BHERNEB BB 2ERN
relating to disposal of foreign PERE
operations - - - (1,044) - (1,044)
Reclassification adjustments FAAHLERENERH
relating to available-for-sale LEFOBRE
investments disposed of
during the year - - 2,475 - - 2,475
Reclassification adjustments FARBRARLEE@ZEMN
relating to subsidiaries DERE
disposed of during the year - - (10,324) - - (10,324)
Other comprehensive FAEMEE N
income for the year - - (27,099) (1,044) - (28,143)
Total comprehensive income FNE2EREEE
for the year - - (27,099) (1,044) 35,690 7,547
Capital reduction and AR BIRL R AR 1 4 48
sub-division of shares (173,920) - - - 173,920 -
Issue of shares under open offer R EAFEEETHRS 83,629 334,519 = = = 418,148
Issue of shares under placing of REFRERHZETRR
shares 1,300 34,450 - - - 35,750
Transaction costs on open offer AFHZEE 2R FHA - (7,282) - - - (7,282)
At 31 March 2016 R-ZE-AR"F=A=+—-H 94,083 852,221 (19,250) - 49,283 976,337

4]
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

REERBHR

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z =& — /<

FZA=1T—HLFE

Available-
for-sale
investment
Share Share revaluation Exchange  Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve losses Total
Afme
REBf
BA Kin&E Ffe E 5 G EG ) ag
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
T THL THEL THIL THL TAL
At 1 April 2014 RZE-NEMA—H 116,316 486,186 5,593 927 (160,519) 448,503
Profit for the year REE R - - - - 192 192
Other comprehensive income: Hip 2 E M :
Exchange difference arising FREEZERZT
during the year - - - 17 - 17
Net gain arising on revaluation ERREGARLERE
of available-for-sale investments MEE 2 Ew 5
during the year - - 8,818 - - 8,818
Reclassification adjustments ENTHREERENERAL
relating to available-for-sale ENHEAR
investments disposed of
during the year - - (6,562) - - (6,562)
Other comprehensive income FREMZENE
for the year - - 2,256 17 - 2,373
Total comprehensive expenses FREERY AR
for the year - - 2,256 17 192 2,565
Issue of shares under open offers REARZEEETRG 58,158 = = - = 58,158
Issue of shares under placement of R B £ 1T
shares 8,600 6,235 - - - 14,835
Transaction costs on open offer RAREZRFBA - (1,887) - - = (1,887)
At 31 March 2015 RZB-RE=A=1—A 183,074 490,534 7,849 1,044 (160,327) 522,174
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
?,e',;'-'-\ ’é‘ EE ﬁ 5)2&, = 45,% For the year ended 31 March 2016 #E —ZE—RNF=A=+—HIFE
2016 2015
—RE T —hF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FEx FHTT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHRENE
Profit before tax B 25 A1 Vg A 41,222 2,745
Adjustments for: BATIEE EH#AE -
Depreciation e 200 2,527
Interest income FIEWA (2,948) (12,026)
Dividend income & 2 WA (48) (161)
Interest expenses B 69 66
Net realised gain on disposal of HEMNHDEERECEEEH
available-for-sale investments TR (5,911) (10,460)
Net realised loss on financial assets FHEEBEZMBEEZE B
held for trading Ei8F R 33,864 450
Net unrealised gain on financial assets BEEBZMBEE 2 RER
held for trading 5 F R (61,030) (9,617)
Net unrealised loss on derivative MEMBIE 2 REREEFHE
financial instruments - 4,767
Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries HE B AR 2 8w F R (18,030) -
Loss on disposal of property, plant LEWE  BEMKKEBEZERE
and equipment 509 -
Operating loss before working capital changes &8 & € & & Aja) & & E18 (12,103) (21,709)
Purchase of financial assets held for trading BEREFEE MK EE (563,018) (354,952)
Purchase of available-for-sale investments BEAHNERE (105,023) (87,219)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HERIEEE 2 MEEEMSHKIE
held for trading 151,695 335,011
Proceeds from disposal of e ERE B RIE
available-for-sale investments 77,272 162,287
Increase in deposit paid for acquisition REIRE S [FiEE 218
of investment - (20,000)
Increase in other receivables, prepayments Ha e RIE ~ BNRIBERES
and deposits 30 78,116 (74,246)
Increase in margin payables FEHREE £ 2 38 N 7,618 =
Increase in accruals FEEtE R M 542 515
Cash used in operations KEEFFAARE (364,901) (60,313)
Interest paid EEEIES (69) (66)
Tax paid [EENERE (127) (129)

Net cash used in operating activities KL EBFMAMNIRE TR (365,097) (60,508)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 March 2016 = =%

—RFE=ZA=+—HIFE

2016 2015
—RE —T—REF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHERT T T
Cash flows from investing activities REZTBHHESRE
Interest received B W F & 2,948 9,468
Dividend received from financial assets BIEEBZMBEE 2B WKRE
held for trading 48 161
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries HEKE AR TS RE 60,847 =
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEMHE  BERKE - (26)
Net cash generated from investing activities KEEEEMIREFE 63,843 9,603
Cash flows from financing activities METBHREMNE
Proceeds from issuance of shares RIR AR EEZITRD ZSRIE
under open offer 418,148 72,993
Proceeds from placing of shares B & B0 2 BT 15 5018 35,750 =
Expenses paid in connection with open offer AHRBEEEEZENAX (7,282) (1,887)
Net cash generated from financing activities RMEEBMSHIRE 446,616 71,106
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents BE&RBEESZEEYEINEH 145,362 20,201
Cash and cash equivalents at FH2HekREEFEY
the beginning of year 79,484 59,269
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net RS 2 (FH) - 14
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year R ZBEERBEELSZEEY 224,846 79,484
Analysis of balances of cash and REeERAEEEYEHRD M
cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances RITRIRE 5k 141,732 6,080
Deposits at other financial institution REMSREE 2 TR 83,114 69,151
Cash and cash equivalents included HAREEEZEESE RS
in disposal group held for sale kRS EEY - 4,253
224,846 79,484
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GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability on 26 April 2002. The
Company’s shares have been listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) with effect from
19 September 2002. The registered office of the Company
is at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and its principal office
in Hong Kong is at Room 1104, Crawford House, 70 Queen’s
Road Central, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set
out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in Hong
Kong dollars (HK$), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

(a) Amendments to HKFRSs and the new
Interpretation that are mandatorily effective for
the current year
The Group has applied for the first time in the current
year the following amendments to HKFRSs and a new
Interpretation issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”).

Amendments to HKAS 19  Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

The application of the above new or revised HKFRSs
in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out
in these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2016 &2 =2 — A "F=A=+—HIEFE

—REH
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AR L REREERAA - ARARGHEZF
Z-FNRTHLBAREEEBMERFIMBRAA
([B$ A2 P 1) T o KA &) 7 it 9% = B2 fi I Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands & & & /& 42
MERUNBRERANBR70HERFHEAEI104E -

ARBZEBEBRREZER - ARFNE R A
ZEBEBENGEE M BIRR M E36

REMBREAETHEE  EXAQRZNERR
GEIDIS

RMFAIRKEBIEEHBREER
(TERMBREER])

(a) RAHEBHER 2 EEFBRMB R
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BRER ERFE195% RERMETE -

ZERT BB
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
%’,;'—: ’g‘ /E\ZI' i% ﬁ %% Bﬂ' -ELI For the year ended 31 March 2016 B2 - T —XF=A=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

(b) New and revised Standards and Interpretations
issued but not yet effective
The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral
Accounts?

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers'

HKFRS 16 Lease?

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions
of Interests in Joint
Operations?
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative?
Amendments to HKAS 16  Clarification of Acceptable
and HKAS 38 Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation?
Amendments to HKAS 16  Agriculture: Bearer Plants?
and HKAS 41
Amendments to HKAS 27  Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements?
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of
and HKAS 28 Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or
Joint Venture*

Amendments to Investment Entities:
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 Applying the
and HKAS 28 Consolidation Exception?

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle?

! Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018, with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2016, with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019, with earlier application permitted.

4 No mandatory effective date but is available for early
adoption.
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(b) BREME N RERZHET KRBT ER
k2E
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B G RRE27H KB T HRE
ZIEFT HE 7 A2
ERMBREENSFI105% HREEEHBENRT
REBEB G ERE285H RALBDEZEH
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BEM GRS 8B JME 2
F12% kBB AR
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BEAMBRELEA 2B ZT-—-FE-F
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
,%',;'—: ’é‘ E]J' i% $& %% Bﬂ' EI For the year ended 31 March 2016 &2 =2 — A "F=A=+—HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

(b) New and revised Standards and Interpretations

2. RMHAIREETEEMBREER
(TERUHHEE]) (H)

(b) T HEMENERERZHET REETER

issued but not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 was subsequently amended in 2010 to include
the requirements for the classification and measurement
of financial liabilities and for derecognition, and further
amended in 2013 to include the new requirements for
hedge accounting. Another revision version of HKFRS
9 was issued in 2014 mainly to include (a) impairment
requirements for financial assets and (b) limited
amendments to the classification and measurement
requirements by introducing a “fair value through other
comprehensive income” measurement category for
certain simple debt instruments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below:

c All recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement” are subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Under
HKFRS 9, debt investments that are held within a
business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end
of subsequent accounting periods. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured
at their fair values at the end of subsequent
reporting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9,
entities may take an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity
investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.

k2E (&)

BB EEREI [ HETA]
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i) 5 — (B ME RT RS B 3 (a) 1 75 & EE HR
EREROELSETHEBHE LASIAES
%2R FE S AR HE 2 U s B IR | 5
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. EMFARKLIETEBMERE EA
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (BB BH/EED]) (&)
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)
(b) New and revised Standards and Interpretations (b) SHEME N RER ZH T RKEITEA
issued but not yet effective (continued) k28 (E)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued) BB BEREERFEIF [H7F T A
(%)

+  With regard to the measurement of financial - FEEREZRATEREMNHBKA
liabilities designated as at fair value through profit BZEE2mMs  BEMEREERFE9
or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of FHAEMBEEEERREREL ZZ
change in the fair value of the financial liability that BEATEEZHENEMEE KRS
is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that 7 BRIEREMEEMEBEREEZRE
liability is presented in other comprehensive income, EREEZHTESEHNBBANERZ
unless the recognition of the effects of changes S ER c MEABEEERREDESE
in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive ZHMBEBEATHEEHEETEEHS
income would create or enlarge an accounting HEER - BEBEES ST ERFEI95 -
mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value EEAREERATERENUEAE
of financial liabilities attributable to changes in the ANFEEFH2E2HERERLET -

financial liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39,
the entire amount of the change in fair value of
the financial liabilities designated as at fair value
through profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

+ In relation to the impairment of financial assets, - DMBEENREMS BESZFE
HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model, B3 N REELEEFHEER
as opposed to an incurred credit loss model under STEMAR - BB G RS ERFT R
HKAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires EERBEREEEBEAGTE - BHEER
an entity to account for expected credit losses and Eﬁ%ﬁ*ﬁﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁﬁfﬁ’\%#&i H B % 78 A7
changes in those expected credit losses at each FEEBEZEEEBENTEREHA
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since IR URBEERR B VAR R
initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer gHo-Mmsr HBEABFREEESH
necessary for a credit event to have occurred before BRI REEEE -

credit losses are recognised.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

(b) New and revised Standards and Interpretations

2. RMHAIREETEEMBREER
(TERUHHEE]) (H)

(b) T HEMENERERZHET REETER

issued but not yet effective (continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

. The new general hedge accounting requirements
retain the three types on hedge accounting
mechanisms currently available in HKAS 39. Under
HKFRS 9, greater flexibility has been introduced
to the types of transactions eligible for hedge
accounting, specifically broadening the types of
instruments that qualify for hedge accounting.
In additions, the effectiveness test has been
overhauled and replaced with the principle of an
“economic relationship”. Retrospective assessment
of hedge effectiveness is also no longer required.
Enhanced disclosure requirements about an
entity’s risk management activities have also been
introduced.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption
of HKFRS 9 in the future may have a significant impact
on the amounts reported in respect of the Group’s
financial assets (e.g. (i) the Group’s investments in
unlisted equity securities, listed and unlisted debt
securities that are currently classified as available-for-
sale financial assets may have to be measured at fair
value at the end of subsequent reporting periods, with
changes in the fair value being recognised in profit or
loss; and (ii) unlisted convertible debt securities of which
the host contract currently classified as available-for-sale
financial assets while the embedded derivative currently
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, may have to be measured at fair value at the end
of subsequent reporting entirely, with changes in the fair
value being recognised in profit or loss). Regarding the
Group’s financial assets, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed review
has been completed.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING FESTBERE
POLICIES
Statement of compliance EREBH

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (“CO”).

The provisions of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) regarding preparation of accounts and directors’
reports and audits became effective for the Company for the
financial year ended 31 March 2016. Further, the disclosure
requirements set out in the Listing Rules regarding annual
accounts have been amended with reference to the new CO
and to streamline with HKFRSs. Accordingly the presentation
and disclosure of information in the consolidated financial
statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2016
have been changed to comply with these new requirements.
Comparative information in respect of the financial year ended
31 March 2015 are presented or disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements based on the new requirements.
Information previously required to be disclosed under the
predecessor CO or Listing Rules but not under the new CO or
amended Listing Rules are not disclosed in these consolidated
financial statements.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss and available-for-sale investments
that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods or services.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset

or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The significant accounting policies are set out below.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not they control an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii)
the previous carrying amount of the assets and liabilities of
the subsidiary. All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of
any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in
an associate or a joint venture.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held
for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather that through continuing
use. This condition is regarded as met only when the asset
(or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its
present condition subject only to terms that are usual and
customary for sales of such asset (or disposal group) and its
sale is highly probable. Management must be committed to
the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition
as a completed sale, which should be expected to qualify for
recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date
of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of
control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of that
subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the criteria
described above are met, regardless of whether the Group will
retain a non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary after
the sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held
for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell.

Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is measured at fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and recognised in profit
or loss as follows:

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of income can be measured
reliably).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING TESHHREME (E)
POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued) WA (E)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases
are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as
a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset
are consumed.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for:

. exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings
relating to assets under construction for future productive
use, which are included in the cost of those assets when
they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on
those foreign currency borrowings;

. exchange differences on transactions entered into in
order to hedge certain foreign currency risks (see the
accounting policies below); and

. exchange differences on monetary items receivable from
or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is
neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part
of the net investment in the foreign operation), which are
recognised initially in other comprehensive income and
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on repayment of
the monetary items.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expense items are translated at the average exchange rates
for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions are used.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING FTEESHBESE (F)
POLICIES (continued)
Borrowing costs fBEE A

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
in respect of wages and salaries in the period the related
service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported
in the profit or loss because of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint arrangements, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or
for administrative purposes are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives
and after taking into account their estimated residual values,
using the straight line method, at the following rates:

Building 5%
Motor vehicle 30%
Leasehold improvement 12.5%
Office equipment 20%
Furniture and fittings 20%

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a

prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in
the year in which the item is derecognised.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the cash-generating unit)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimated of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING FTESHEEBE (B)
POLICIES (continued)
Provisions B

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision
is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of
those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money
is material).

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets “at fair value through profit or loss”
(FVTPL), “available-for-sale” (AFS) financial assets and “loans
and receivables”. The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the
time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees on points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to
the net carrying amount of initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets designed as at
FVTPL.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets are classified as at FYTPL when the financial
assets are either held for trading or it is designated as at
FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
it in the near term; or

. On initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading
may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

. such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

. the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement permits
the entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any dividend or interest earned on the financial
asset and is included in the “net unrealised gain or loss on
financial asset at fair value through profit or loss” line item in
the consolidated income statement. Fair value is determined
in the manner described in elsewhere in these notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as (a)
loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments or
(c) financial assets at FVTPL. The Group designated certain
items, including unlisted equity securities, listed and unlisted
debt securities and unlisted convertible debt securities, as
AFS financial assets on initial recognition of those items.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are
classified as AFS financial assets and are traded in an active
market are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Changes in the carrying amount of AFS monetary
financial assets relating to interest income calculated using
the effective interest method and dividends on AFS equity
investments are recognised in profit or loss. Other changes
in the carrying amount of AFS financial assets are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the
heading of available-for-sale investments revaluation reserve.
When the investment is disposed of or is determined to be
impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated
in the available-for-sale investments revaluation reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss (see the accounting policy in
respect of impairment loss on financial assets below).

Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognised in profit
or loss when the Group’s right to receive the dividends is
established.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING TESHHREME (E)
POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued) £ETE (&)

AFS financial assets (continued)

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and must
be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity investments
are measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at
the end of each reporting period (see the accounting policy in
respect of impairment loss on financial assets below).

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Loans and receivables (including deposits and
other receivables, cash and cash equivalents) are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables when the recognition of
interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there
is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been
affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the security below its costs is considered to
be objective evidence of impairment.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

. breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment
loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods (see the
accounting policy below).

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to
profit or loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the
period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING FESTHERE (F)
POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued) £ T H (&)
Impairment of financial assets (continued) HBEREZHE (&)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment losses
previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent
to an impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of available-for-
sale investment revaluation reserve. In respect of AFS debt
investments, impairment losses are subsequently reversed
through profit or loss if an increase in the fair value of the
investment can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the recognition of the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities, including accrual, are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to
the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis
other than financial liabilities classified as at FVTPL.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date when derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated
and effective as a hedging instrument, in which case the
timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the
nature of the hedge relationship.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts
are treated as separate derivatives when their risks and
characteristics are not closely related to those of the host
contracts and the host contracts are not measured at FVTPL.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING FESHHREME (F)
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued) £ T H (&)

Effective interest method (continued) BB EZE(E)
Derecognition 1R

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recongise the asset
to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises
an associated liability. If the Group retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety,
the Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the
financial asset between the part it continues to recognise, and
the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative
fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The
difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part
that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration
received for the part no longer recognised and any cumulative
gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss. A
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part that
continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer
recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those
parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institution, and short-term liquid investments which are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition For the purpose of the
consolidated statement of cash flows, bank overdrafts and
bank loans, if any, which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of and entity’s cash managements are also
included as component of cash and cash equivalents.

Related parties
For the purposes of these financial statements, related parties

include a person and entity as defined below:

(i) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(a) has control or joint control over the Group;
(b) has significant influence over the Group;

(c) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Company or of a parent of the Company;
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (continued)
(ii) An entity is related to the Group (reporting entity) if any
of the following conditions applies:

(a) the entity and the Company are members of
the same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others);

(b) either entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member);

(c) both entities are joint ventures of a third entity;

(d) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(e) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Company or an
entity related to the Company. If the reporting entity
is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are
also related to the plan;

(f) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (i);

(g) a person identified in (i)(a) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity);

(h) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or a parent of the Group.

For the year ended 31 March 2016 &2 —Z— "F=A=+—HILFE
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Classification of investments in unlisted equity
securities and unlisted convertible debts securities
Certain investments in unlisted equity securities and unlisted
convertible debt securities are not classified as an associate
nor accounted for using equity method, even the Group owns
or potentially owns more than 20% ownership interest in those
investments. In the opinion of the directors, the Group has no
significant influence over those investments since:

—  the Group did not have any representative on the board
of directors or equivalent governing body of those
investments;

—  the Group did not participate in policy-making processes,
including participation in decisions about dividends or
other distributions;
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

(continued)

Classification of investments in unlisted equity

securities and unlisted convertible debts securities

(continued)

— the Group did not have any transactions with those
investments;

—  the Group did not interchange any managerial personnel
with those investments; and

— the Group did not provide any technical information to
those investments.

As the Group did not act to fulfill any one of the issues stated
above, it does not consider as having significant influence on
the investments. Hence, those investments are not considered
as the associate of the Group.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes
Some of the Group’s assets and liabilities are measured
at fair value for financial reporting purposes. The board of
directors of the Company determines the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group
uses market-observable data to the extent it is available.
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages
independent professional valuers to perform the valuation.
The financial controller works closely with the independent
professional valuers to establish the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to the model. The financial controller
reports the valuation findings to the board of directors of the
Company to explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair value
of the assets and liabilities.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Fair value measurements and valuation processes
(continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that
are not based on observable market data to estimate the fair
value of certain types of financial instruments. Note 7 provides
detailed information about the valuation techniques, inputs
and key assumptions used in the determination of the fair
value of various assets and liabilities.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to shareholders of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors review the capital structure by considering the
cost of capital and the risks associated with capital. In view of
this, the Group will balance its overall capital structure through
new shares issues as well as the issue of new debt. The
Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged throughout the
year.

EREFABRMGATAPERZEE
HR (&)

fEEt R E R 2 EERF (&)
N FEETE R4 EAE ()

AEERRBEL A TR TSRS AKED
BABSER G ERISHEE TEISBTA
WATE METREEBEESEAERAEA
TEM ARG ERDS - HAKERBRERYH
BEH -

ExREBRER

AEEEREER BREAKBERFSELE R
REBELEHEEEREZTEH FERAKRR
B3 AEEBRBRENEEFEEFTE -

AEEZAREBOERS RASSEYNARE
B B 77 AR 2 B o A AL AR 2 75 28 ) B R A A4 M 2 o

EEREREARAREAABAR - BHEA
il AR AREBEBRTHBURY
T THREEE AR AR E R
REEFERHTE -



74 China Investment and Finance Group Limited
P BE kK B B £ B B R 4 #A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

,2,51-\ ’é‘ /E\ZI' i% ﬁ %% |Zﬂ' EI For the year ended 31 March 2016 &2 —Z— "F=A=+—HILFE
6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. BIEITH
Categories of financial instruments BEIEREz29E
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial REREHARI AR SEBIBKEITAEZREEmEND
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as T
follows:
Financial AFS Other
assets at Loan and financial financial
FVTPL receivables assets liabilities Total
RATE
Sl A8 3 IR EXREk AHEE Hth
ZUBEE REBRRE BEEE HEEE #at

HK$’ 000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’ 000
THERT FET TERT FTERT TET

2016 —E-RF
AFS investments AfEERE - - 105,773 - 105,773
Financial assets held for trading RIEEBE MG EE 524,308 = = = 524,308
Other receivables and deposits H fth & WK IE R iR & - 138,341 - - 138,341
Bank and cash balances R1T MR gk = 224,846 = = 224,846
524,308 363,187 105,773 - 993,268
Margin payables B RES 7,618 7,618
Accurals EETEH - = = 1,213 1,213
- - - 8,831 8,831
Financial AFS Other
assets at Loan and financial financial
FVTPL receivables assets liabilities Total
ZAFE
I A 18 2 Bk Bk AHEE E A,
2B EE RBEFHE MBEEE VBERE et
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET
2015 —T—H%F
AFS investments At HERE = = 208,171 = 208,171
Financial assets held for trading REEBE MK EE 38,699 - - - 38,699
Derivative financial instruments PTESmIT A 9,077 = — = 9,077
Deposits paid for acquisition of RBBREZ RS
investment - 20,000 — - 20,000
Other receivables and deposits Hfth B W ERIE R IR & = 141,169 = = 141,169
Bank and cash balances RITRIRE ek = 75,231 = = 75,231

47,776 236,400 208,171 - 492,347

Accurals EETER - - = 737 737
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Group’s major financial instruments include AFS
investments, financial assets held for trading, other
receivables and deposits, bank and cash balances and
accruals. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in the respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments and the policies applied by the Group
to mitigate these risks are set out below. Management
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented in a timely and effective manner.

Foreign currency risk

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of the
Group’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets which
consists of cash and cash equivalents that are denominated
in United States dollars amounted to HK$18,488,000 (2015:
HK$18,491,000). The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, the management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider the hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arises.

Sensitivity analysis
As HKS$ is pegged to USD, the Group does not expect any
significant movements in the USD/HK$ exchange rates.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates debt
investment carried at fixed rate included in AFS investments.
The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated
on the bank balances carried at floating interest rate. The
Group currently does not have a hedge policy against the
interest rate exposure. However, the management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider the hedging significant
interest rate exposure as needed.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

Assuming the bank balance and debt securities at 31 March
2016 was outstanding for the whole year, if the interest rate
was 50 basis points higher or lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s:

(i) profit for the year ended 31 March 2016 would increase
or decrease approximately HK$1,124,000 (2015: loss
would decrease or increase approximately HK$376,000).
This is mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to
floating interest rate on its bank balance; and

(i) other comprehensive expense for the year ended
31 March 2016 would increase or decease by
approximately HK$nil and HK$nil respectively (2015:
other comprehensive income would decease or increase
by approximately HK$556,000 and HK$561,000). This is
mainly as a result of the changes in the fair value of fixed
rate debt instruments.

Equity price risk

The Group’s equity price risk relates to equity price changes
arising from listed securities held for trading stated in financial
assets at FVTPL. The Group’s listed securities are listed on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Decisions to buy
and sell listed securities are rested with assigned investment
managers and governed by specific investment guidelines.
The Group’s equity price risk is mainly concentrated on
equity securities operating in 4 sectors quoted in the Stock
Exchange.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

If the price of the respective investments held by the Group
as financial assets held for trading were higher or lower by
5% as at 31 March 2016 (2015: 5%), the Group’s profit for
the year ended 31 March 2016 would increase or decrease by
approximately HK$26,215,000 (2015: HK$1,935,000).

Credit risk

As at 31 March 2016, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is
arising from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual other receivables and
debt investment at the end of the reporting period to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company consider
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced. The Group
does not provide any financial guarantees which would expose
the Group to credit risk.

Cash and bank deposits are placed with financial institutions
with sound credit ratings. Listed securities stated in financial
assets held for trading are placed with custodian, which
management believes it's of higher credit quality. Given
their high credit ratings, management does not expect any
counterparty failing to meet its obligations.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) ¥ T R (&)
Liquidity risk REBELEE

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group are unable to meet
their payment obligations associated with its financial liabilities
when they fall due. The Group manages liquidity risk by
maintaining adequate reserves, as well as continuously
monitoring cash flow forecast and actual cash flows.

In managing the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents that is
adequate in management discretion. In formulating their
strategy, management would consider the financing of he
Group’s operations and the effects of fluctuation in operating
and investing cash flows. As at 31 March 2016, the liquidity
of the Group is primarily dependent on its ability to maintain
adequate cash flows from operations and to raise funds
through issue and allotment of new shares to meet its debt
obligations and investment project opportunities as they fall
due or arise.

The remaining contractual maturities at the end of the
reporting period of the Group’s financial liabilities, which are
based on contractual undiscounted cash flows and the earliest
date of the Group can be required to pay, are within one year
or on demand (2015: within one year or on demand).
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7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis
At 31 March 2016, the Group had following financial
instruments carried at fair value all of which are based

on the Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 of the fair value

T/

AFEFTE

(i) AEEERUAFEFEZAEERK
EERAYE
RZZE—R"F=ZA=+—H8 x&EBEHUT
MHITA HEATFTESERHNEZEF & -
B_BRE=ZBURFEAE :

hierarchy:
2016 2015
—E-RE —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FHET F& T
Level 1: F—
Financial assets at fair value BATFEIAEBRE
through profit or loss Z TS EE
— Financial assets held for trading —FREBEECHMBEE 524,308 38,699
Level 3: B=#:
Financial assets at fair value BEAFEINABREER
through profit or loss 2B EE
— Derivative financial instruments —TELMTHE - 9,077
AFS investments Al ERE
— Equity securities — IR AR B 5 105,773 74,395
— Debt securities — B EH - 133,776
630,081 255,947

There were no transfers among all Levels in both years.

Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial

liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of each

reporting period. The following table gives information

about how the fair values of these financial assets and

financial liabilities are determined (in particular, the

valuation technique(s) and inputs used).

P fIE] 6 [ 19 45 AR ) O 8 4 ¢ o

AEEETHHBEERYBABTIARSE MRS
R ZAFEFE - TREIAZEUBEELY
BREZAFE~LSNFEE (BEME - MEMRMR
B R ARIE)
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7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued) 7. REETEE)
(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that () REEERUQATFEFEZEAEENE
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis EEAFE(E)
(continued)
Relationship of
Significant unobservable
Fair value Valuation unobservable inputs
Financial assets 2016 2015 hierarchy technique(s) inputs Range to fair value
TABR
BEXFT BAHER
BBEE ZB-RE —Z-n% NTHEER fhERE  BEBARE §E ATEZBE
HK$’000 HK$' 000
TR TR
Available-for-sales investments
THAERE
Unlisted equity securities 105,773 74,395 Level 3 Discount Free N/A The higher
cash flow cash flow the free cash
flow, the higher
the fair value
3 ETRAZES 105,773 74,395 E=4 BRASR BRR SR TER BRASREAN
AFEEA
Discounted 13.95% to 17.08% The higher
rate (2015: the discount
12.2% t0 17.2%) rate, the
lower the
fair value
BRE 1395%£17.08%  EBXEK
(ZT-5F: NFES
12.2%%17.2%)
Discount ~ 10.08% to 25% The higher
for lack of (2015: the discount
marketability 15.20%) for lack of
marketability,
the lower fair
value
RZEHEE  10.08%Z25% BRZEHE
g3 (ZE-nf: BREA

15.20%) NFEHN
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e MR R MR

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

(continued)
Financial assets 2016
HBEE “E-RE
HK$’000
TER

Unlisted debt -
security

FEmESES -

Unlisted convertible -
debt securities
(debt component)

FEEMABRESES -
(EH M)

2015

“T-nfF

HK$'000
FEL

35,311

35,311

98,465

98,465

Fair value
hierarchy

LYEER

Level 3

Level 3

iy
|11
=

T/

(i) ZBERERULQAFEFEZAREUHE

AFEFE (E)
EERXYE(E)
Significant
Valuation unobservable
technique(s) inputs
EXFT
HERT BEH 8B
Discount Discounted
cash flow rate
BRE ST HRE
Discount Discounted
cash flow rate
ERRER BRE

Range

#E

(2015:
5.15% to
17.87%

(ZE-hf:
5.15%%
17.87%)

Relationship of

unobservable
inputs

to fair value
FABR
BAHER
ATEZBE

The higher
the discount
rate, the lower
the fair value
HRZMA
NFE-)

The higher
the discount
rate, the
lower the fair
value
EREEA
NFEB)
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7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued) 7. REETEE)
(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that () REEERUQATFEFEZEAEENE
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis EEAFE(E)
(continued)
Relationship of
Significant unobservable
Fair value Valuation unobservable inputs
Financial assets 2016 2015 hierarchy technique(s) inputs Range to fair value
TABR
BEXFT BAHER
BBEE ZB-RE —Z-n% NTHEER fhERE  BEBARE §E ATEZBE
HK$’000 HK$' 000
TR TR
Financial assets
at fair value
through profit or loss
BERATEINBREZ A FEE
Financial assets 524,308 38,699 Level 1 Quoted bid N/A N/A N/A
held for trading prices in an
active market
BIEEE/MKEE 524,308 38,699 F—# REMEER Gl TER TER
Derivative - 9,077 Level 3 Binomial Value of N/A The higher
financial Option Pricing conversion the value of
instruments Model share conversion
share, the
higher the
fair value
fTESRIA - 9,077 E=4 B R#EH TER R
HErERsl ZEfE BEHX
RFEER
Expected - The higher
volatility (2015: 44.24 the expected
to 57.76%) volatility,
the higher
the fair value
BHRRE - EEREEA
(ZZ-1%F: NHEEA
224%

57.76%)
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(i)

For the year ended 31 March 2016 &2 =2 — A "F=A=+—HIEFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued) 7. AVETE(R)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that () RERERUAFEFEZLAEEHE
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis EEQAFE(E)
(continued)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements E=HATEFEHERR
2016
—E-REF
Financial assets
B & E
Derivative Available-for-sale
financial investments
instruments AHHERE
Embedded Equity Debt
derivative securities securities
PTEBBIA
BmMAXTETA N BHERF
HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET THET
At 1 April 2015 R-—ZE—RAFWMWA—A 9,077 74,395 133,776
Total gains or losses W as ok B 18 48 FR
in profit or loss 18 75 AR - - -
in other comprehensive income RE M2 R = - (19,250) =
Purchase BE = 125,023 =
Disposal = (9,077) (74,395) (133,776)
At 31 March 2016 R=ZFE—R"EF=A=+—H - 105,773 -

Total gains recognised in the
consolidated statement
of profit or loss relating to
assets held at 31 March 2016

R-ZB-—AF=A=+—H
FERGREESERERZ
HEERMZBRAE
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e MR R MR

(i)

R -~ 4

ST ARE=AST-ALEE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued) 7. A¥ETE(R)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that (i) RERERUAFEFEZLAEEHE
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis EEAFE(E)
(continued)
2015
—T-RF
Financial assets
WA E
Derivative Available-for-sale
financial investments
instruments AfEERE
Embedded Equity Debt
derivative securities securities
TTEMBTH
MAXTETLTH ENCES B % 7
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHT T T T
At 1 April 2014 RZZE—WMFEMA—H 14,468 75,864 179,761
Total gains or losses Uiz ok B 18 48 58
in profit or loss REZER (4,767) - -
in other comprehensive income REM2EKE = (1,469) 6,213
Purchase EE = = =
Disposal ek = (624) - (52,198)
At 31 March 2015 RZZE—RAF=A=+—H 9,077 74,395 133,776
Total loss recognised in the RZE—RAFE=A=+—H
consolidated statement of FTEE R & 18 am R FER
profit or loss relating to assets HEERBEERRE
held at 31 March 2015 (4,767) - -

(if)

Fair values of financial instruments carried at

other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets

and financial liabilities carried at amortised cost are not

materially different from their fair values as at 31 March

2016 and 2015 due to their short-term maturities.

(i) YFRAAFEFEZHBEIRZATVE

RZB-RER-ZE-RAF=A=+—HMA
BHN A ENAEEV B EERYBAG
ZEHEREAFEREEAER  HHEY
AR -
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8. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

2015/16 Annual Report

£ W

For the year ended 31 March 2016 &2 —ZT— R F=A=+—HILFE

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and other income are as

Wi B H A A

AEBE WS R EMBADHTAOT

follows:
2016 2015
—E-RE e e
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FET FABT
Revenue: WS -
Dividend income from financial assets BEEB U BEEZREKRA
at held for trading 48 161
Interest income from debt securities BiEEH 2 A BWA 2,617 10,527
Interest income from other receivables H iy fE W FRIB 2 F B URA - 1,430
Interest income from brokers & 2 F B A 325 =
Interest income from bank accounts RITFERZFBWA 6 69
2,996 12,187
Other income: H Az
Net foreign exchange gain INEAZ 5 2 R 3G B - 18
Sundry income HEIE W 126 591
Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR 2 FiEas 18,030 =
18,156 609
21,152 12,796
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

For the year ended 31 March 2016 and 2015, the Group’s
revenue and results were mainly derived from the interest
income and dividend income from investment holding. The
directors consider that these activities constitute one and the
only business segment since these transactions are subject
to common risks and returns. The management monitors
the operating results of its business for the purpose of
making decision about resource allocation and performance
assessment. Given the nature of the Group’s business
was operated as a single segment, it is not considered
meaningful to provide a business segment analysis of financial
performance.

Geographical information

During the year ended 31 March 2016 and 2015, all activities
of the Group are based in Hong Kong and all of the Group’s
revenue was derived from Hong Kong. Accordingly, no
analysis by geographical segment is presented.

Given that the nature of the Group’s operation is investment
holding, there was no information regarding major customers
as determined by the Group.

7 E R
REE-_ZT—R"Erk_ZFT—AF=A=+—H1
FE AEEUSREETERAKELRRZF
BRARBRBWA - EERR  BRZERHH
XERREKRERR - EZEEBEHE — R
—XBoB o BEETHHER 2 LEREEUE
Méﬁﬁ SR RERBFBIELRTE - ERAERK
BB —XBAE UHMBERARBELS B
MERDAK o

REBEEZZ—AR"FEFRZTE—RAF=ZA=+—HL

FE - $§'%.Fﬁﬁ¥7%i’ﬂﬁé‘§%ﬁﬁ PN E

ZFBREIVRE B - Bt - EBEZ 5
ROEER -

ERAKBEREEBHE N REER  RAKHE
BE AEBEYEEHEIEEFPETENEF -
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10. PROFIT FROM OPERATION 10. & & A

£ W

2016 2015
—E-RE —E—AHF
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FERT FAT
Profit from operation has been arrived RESEF TR A TIEE BB :
at after charging:
Directors’ remunerations T
— Fees —tHe 1,357 1,103
— Other remunerations —H b B & 286 62
Total directors’ remunerations FEl =Nl 1,643 1,165
Staff costs 8 TRA
— Salaries — & 3,220 4,756
— Provident fund contributions —REEHK 93 99
Total staff costs (excluding BETIRA(TBREEEHS)
directors’ remunerations) 3,313 4,855
Auditors’ remuneration % 26N B & 380 350
Depreciation e 200 2,527
Investment manager fee REKEER 960 960
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE  WERXEBEE
plant and equipment 509 -
Operating lease payments BREANAE 2 &SRR
in respect of office premise 413 2,056
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11. FINANCE COSTS 11. @& KA
2016 2015
ZE-XKF —T-0F
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FEx T
Margin financing interest wholly BERAFRNEBHEEZRZFCRET S
repayable within five years 252 66
12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12. FIBBiMAxX
2016 2015
—E-XEF —ET—hH4F
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FHERT T
Current tax: EHRIH A
Hong Kong Profits Tax: BEBFFH
Provision for the year RE E R 38 66
Over-provision in respect of prior year FHEEBEEE (107) (30)
(69) 36
PRC Enterprise Income Tax: PRI ERMER
Provision for the year REEEE - 14
- 50
Deferred tax: BRI -
Charges for the year REELZH 5,601 2,503
5,532 2,553
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12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 12. FIEHEX (&)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit

before tax using the statutory tax rate for the respective tax

jurisdictions in which the Company and its subsidiaries are

domiciled is:

FRBIA M AT ERBATGE N 2 HROT - AR
FAME R Ty AR A ) I 8 MY & B S P 7 AR B B IR

BERRZIAERE

2016 2015
ZE-KF T —hF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHERT FH&T

Profit before tax B 25 BT 7 41,222 2,745
Tax at the statutory tax rate BEEMERGHE 2HHIE 6,802 453
Tax effect of expenses not deductible OB RT 2 HETE

for tax purposes 3,396 4,277
Tax effect of non-taxable revenues BARPMA 2 R E2 - (4,576)
Over provision in respect of prior years BT FEBEREE (6,002) (30)
Tax effect on temporary differences not AEREEERE B RESE

recognised (107) -
Effect of different tax rates of REMEDEEREE BT

subsidiaries operating TRBME 2z 2

in other jurisdiction 1,176 (124)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERTBEE BB L 267 2,553
Tax charge for the year FEMIEREZ 5,532 2,553

Hong Kong Profits Tax was calculated at 16.5% (2015: 16.5%)
of the estimated assessable profits for both years.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation

Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC companies
was 25% for the year ended 31 March 2016 and 2015.

BB RI13 BT R B 2 Ak T B AR B R
16.5% (=B — T4 : 16.5%) I B K

REBREARAME ((HE]) EEMBHE (D
EMBTED REXMEREAERGH  BE—
Z-RNFERZZE-—hAF=ZA=+—HILFE 7

B B 2 FE R R £525% ©
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13.

14.

DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2016 and 2015.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based
on the profit attributable to owners of the Company of
HK$35,690,000 (2015: HK$192,000) and the weighted
average number of 565,210,000 (2015 restated: 820,349,000)
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is same as the basic earnings
per share as there were no potential ordinary share in issue
during both years.

During the year, the Company implemented the share
consolidation of every five shares of par value HK$0.01
each into one consolidated share of HK$0.05 each (the
“Share Consolidation”), and issued 1,672,592,000 shares
at HK$0.25 per share on the basis eights offer shares for
every one existing consolidated share (the “Open Offer”).
The Share Consolidation and Open Offer were completed
on 14 December 2015 and 14 January 2016 respectively.
Accordingly, the weighted average number of shares for the
purposes of basic and diluted earnings per share has been
adjusted for both years.

13.

14.

For the year ended 31 March 2016 &2 —Z— "F=A=+—HILFE

BRE
EETEFSENBE_ZT—R"FR-_ZE—HF=
B=+—BLEFEZERE -

BRER
BREARBNDIBRIBEARQ G EE A ELEF
35,690,000/ 7T (=& — f1 £ : 192,0007% 7T) &
NEE B BT hNRE 5 AR A% $1565,210,000 %
(ZZ—RFEKEY : 820,349,0000%) 5t & -

HRMEFESESETEETBR NSRS
BREMNEGREXRNER o

FA - AABZBAREEIETZRNES
PR —IREREEC.SETZAHIRN 2 EER
e & 6t (B & 6]  XRE—BRRA A H
Pt 28 3% )\ L3 5 I fn 2 %2 86171,672,592,000
IR & A E0.258 T 2 Bty (T ARAEE D) < B
EHERAABRESNIR-_Z—RF+=-F+TH
MNZZT—RE-—A+TMEATK Bl ZWFEH
Nt EERERREER M Z miEFHn A
BEFHE -
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15. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS’ EMOLUMENTS

15. EER A EBREHFEEME

(a) Directors

The aggregate amounts of emoluments payable by the

Company during the years are as follows:

(a) E=E

REANRRREN ZMEEREET :

2016 2015
—E—-RE —EF—HF
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FHET T T
Fees e

Executive directors WITES 360 390
Non-executive directors EHITES 539 312
Independent non-executive directors B JEHITEE 458 401
1,357 1,103

Other emoluments H i &
Basic salaries and other benefits BEARFH & K HE A 260 60
Retirement scheme contributions IR K@ T 5T B 51 26 2
286 62
1,643 1,165

No Directors waived any emoluments and no emoluments

were paid to the Directors as inducement to join or upon

joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office

during the year (2015: nil).

FALTBREEREMNE  TEAEEINHEIA
BEIREMBARELFE/MBR 2 BE LR

BE(CE-—HE:B)
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15. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(a) Directors (continued)

15. EERTEBEHEEMS (H)

(a) E= (&)

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the ten ERsEMNTFT TR (CE—RF: +R)ES
(2015: ten) directors are as follows: TEMEmT
2016 2015
—RE ZZ-0F
Basic
salaries Retirement
and other scheme Total Total
Fees benefits contributions emoluments  emoluments
EX%& RIREA
we  REMER &t & g Wemam i< 4%
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FHT FET FAT THERT FHT
Executive director HITES
Mr. CHAN Cheong Yee RERLLE 360 - - 360 390
Non-executive directors FHTES
Mr. LIAO Jin Tian B#REE 120 260 13 393 272
Mr. ZHOU Weiquan (note i) EER L4 (M) = = = - -
Mr. ZHOU Han Jie (note ii) FBIEAR & & (BT i) 20 - - 20 90
Ms. LEE Kar Ying (note iii) 29048 2z =+ (B i) 310 - 13 323 12
Mr. WU Qi (note iv) R A (i aFiv) 89 - - 89 =
Sub-total NET 539 260 26 825 374
Independent non-executive BYkHTES
directors
Mr. HA Tak-kong (note v) BRI xE (iskv) 55 = = 55 130
Mr. LO Chi Ming (note vi) 85 5 A (Bt =tvi) - = = - 6
Mr. LEUNG Kwong Kin (note vii) 22t {8 % & (K #tvii) - - - - 30
Mr. TSANG Hin Man Terence BENXSLE 120 - - 120 130
Mr. LUK Simon (note viii) BE 3R 2 5t A (B sviii) 120 = = 120 100
Ms. LIU Xiaoyin (note iii) 2085 1 22 £ (B i) 19 = = 119 5
Mr. HON Leung (note ix) 55 55 A (Pt 3Eix) 44 = = 44 =
Sub-total NE 458 - - 458 401
Total e 1,357 260 26 1,643 1,165
Notes: HiaE :

i. Resigned on 30 July 2014
ii. Resigned on 1 June 2015
iii.  Appointed on 20 March 2015
iv.  Appointed on 3 July 2015

V. Resigned on 15 September 2015

vi. Resigned on 17 April 2014
vii. Resigned on 2 July 2014
viii. Appointed on 2 July 2014

ix.  Appointed on 20 November 2015

ii.
iii.
iv.
vi.
Vii.
viii.

<

tHIEI]EEII:Hl:HtHIﬂ

P_Tlﬁtﬂ +BEHE

FHRA—HET
F=ZA-FTHEZFE
FLrA=ZHEZFT
FNA+HRAHE
FMA+ERABE
F+ A - HEHE
FrA-—HEZFT

F+t—A-THEZE
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15. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 15. EERTEBeHEEMS (F)
INDIVIDUALS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EERBESHFEE
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the AEBRE RS HEED MB(ZE—F
Group, two (2015: one) were directors of the Company £ —Z)ERATEE  EMEEEHN L5
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis S BB =R (ZT—AF : mRB)AAZ
presented above. The emoluments of the remaining three 4T :
(2015: four) individuals were as follows:
2016 2015
—E—KRF —E-REF
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FET FHT
Basic salaries and other benefits HAFH & R EMEF 2,780 3,625
Contributions to retirements R ARAR TSt 8RR
benefits scheme 70 52
2,850 3,677
The number of the highest paid individuals whose VR TIMeHE s &SFHEEABNAT !
remuneration fell with the following band is as follows:
2016 2015
—E-RF —T—hF
HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000 870 %£1,000,000/% 7T 2 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 70 £ 1,500,000/% 7T
No emoluments were paid to these individuals as RAFEE - WEE S EAZAB S AR KE
inducement to join or upon joining the Group as MBREESNIERMBE s REABBHE(ZE

compensation for loss of office for the year (2015: Nil). —hHF:F) e
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. ¥  BWERRZRE

Leasehold Office Motor
Buildings  improvement equipment vehicle Total
HENF
B =30 WAERE AE @t
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FAT FET FEL FEL FHEL
Cost BAE

At 1 April 2014 RZE-EEENA—H 35,309 1,807 69 405 37,590
Additions RE = - 26 - 26
Transfer to investment properties BEEREANE (25,752) - - - (25,752)
Transfer to disposal group held for sale ~ BHEZHFELEZHES (9,627) = = = (9,627)
Exchange realignment IMNEFHE 70 - - - 70

At 31 March 2015 and 1 April 2015 RZZ-RF=A=1-H

EZZ-n%MA—-H - 1,807 95 405 2,307
Written off ik - (1,807) (95) = (1,902)
At 31 March 2016 RZZE-xE=A=1+-H - - - 405 405
Accumulated depreciation RHERRAE

and impairment

At 1 April 2014 RZE—NENA—A 5,231 567 27 244 6,069
Charge for the year FARY 802 620 18 122 1,562
Transfer to investment properties ERERENE (4,137 = - - (4,137)
Transfer to disposal group held for sale  EREZH{EHEZ HEER (1,907) = = = (1,907)
Exchange realignment SMEHE 1 - - - 11
At 31 March 2015 and 1 April 2015 RZE-RE=A=+—H

kZZ-14mMA—-H - 1,187 45 366 1,598
Charge for the year FRRZ = 156 5 39 200
Written back qe - (1,343) (50) - (1,393)
At 31 March 2016 R=ZB-AF=ZA=1-H - - - 405 405
Carrying amounts REFE
At 31 March 2016 RZZE-x"E=A=1-H - - - - -

At 31 March 2015 RZZ2-RE=A=+-H - 620 50 39 709
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17. DEPOSIT PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF 17. RRBREXES
INVESTMENTS
The balance was unsecured, interest-free, refundable, R EEE 28 AT R RFHRRE
and paid to the potential vendor, who is an individual and ERF(RAREEBZBAREBYE=F) - REFLTE
independent third party to the Group. The Group had actively MEIZE HETER  WERERR - —1F
negotiated with the vendor but such negotiation had not been ZA=T—HRAZEK REBZE_Z-—RF=A
concluded as at 31 March 2015. During the year ended 31 =+—HILFE EHEEBEEX ' MENES
March 2016, the negotiation had been completed and the BEE WHEGETHREERE ZKA -
deposit paid has been transferred and deemed on the costs of
available-for-sales investments.
18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 18. A ERE
Available-for-sale investments comprise: AHHERERR
2016 2015
—E-XRF —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FHET FHE T
Unlisted equity securities (note 1) ELEMRAES (Ba1) 125,023 79,800
Less: fair value adjustment W R EFE (19,250) (5,405)
105,773 74,395
Unlisted convertible debt securities (note 2) JEETM AR EE B S (KiE2) - 85,521
Less: fair value adjustment W REEFAE - 12,944
- 98,465
Unlisted debt security (note 3) IEFMERE S (H/73) - 35,000
Less: fair value adjustment W AT ERE - 311
- 35,311
Total FEk 105,773 208,171
Analysed for reporting purpose as: FEBAMIETI DT
Current mE - 85,666
Non-current FERE 105,773 122,505

105,773 208,171
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

?,5'1-\ ’é‘ /E\ZI' i% ﬁ %% |Zﬂ' %I For the year ended 31 March 2016 &2 = — A "F=A=+—HIEFE

18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 18. AT HERE (&)

(continued)

The above available-for-sale investments were measured at F A ERE DA S RERABEREZAF
fair values at the end of each reporting period. The information B2 BEEAFEAECERRNZERATE

for the fair value measurement has been disclosed in note 7(i)
in these consolidated financial statements.

For unlisted equity instruments, there was no objective
evidence of impairment (i.e. a significant or prolonged decline
in fair value of the security below their costs).

For debt instruments, there was no objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset and of which has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated.

Note 1:

Details of principal unlisted equity securities held by the Group are as

SRR FET()HFE ©

MIFLTRATAMS - WEFERELSR (AE
FRFEABARMHERERKAE)

REBTAMS  EVSHEREERLEEE—
BRZBEENERZAXZAP B EEN G R
KR REMERNT ERER AT 2 FEM
BFR -

P

AEBMRFZEBFEMBAZHZZFABOAT

follows:
Name of Place of Percentage Net assets
investee incorporation/ of effective Fair value attributable to
companies establishment interest held At cost adjustment At fair value the investments
ERENTER AR/ R fEERERE AL HAE AVERE HREfE RER{EEERE
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Z%-AF “E2-1f ZB-xf “T-1F ZE-AE “T-0F ZB-x3F “2-1F ZE-xf %1%
HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TER T TER Tk TER T TER T
Peak Zone Group Limited British Virgin Islands
(note a) (#ita) RERIES 25.00% - 75,000 - (19,250) - 55,750 - 1,319 -
Help U Credit Finance
Limited (note b) Hong Kong
EABBERLA W) B 28.08% - 50,000 - - - 50,000 - 2676 -
Plexson Limited (note c) Hong Kong
BRERAR (i) Bk - 15.00% - 45,000 - (6,250) - 38,750 - 33762
Forest Investment Company
Limited (note d) Hong Kong
REREERAA (Hita) B - 29.00% - 34,800 - 845 - 35,645 - 35,358



Annual R rt
2015/16 . £p°$&

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R MR

18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(continued)

Note

2:

Details of principal unlisted convertible debt securities held by the
Group are as follows:

Name of incorporation/
investee companies establishment At cost
BRENAER RSB 3 B BAE
2016 2015
—E-RE —T-1F =
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TER THT
IGO Seating Limited
(note e) Hong Kong
BERABERAR (Hite) BAE - 38,097
Yuet Join Industrial
Limited (note ) Hong Kong
BEREXERAR (M) BF - 47,424
Note 3:

Place of

Details of the unlisted debt security held by the Group are as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # & =& —

NE=ZA=1T—HLEFE

18. At HERE (&)

Fffsk2 :

AEBMAFZEZFEMABRREBE S ZFBOAT

Fair value At Bond interest
adjustment fair value income

APERE AYE BHFEWA
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
E-XE ZT-HF ZE-x"E ZT-1F ZE-XE ZT-1F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR THET TET THT TET THT
- 10,013 - 48,110 239 398
- 2,931 - 50,355 623 2,500

FfEE3 :

AEEFRFZIFLETEBERZFHBOT

Place of
Name of incorporation/ Fair value At Bond interest
investee companies establishment At cost adjustment fair value income
ERENAEH RSB 3 B BAE AVERAE ATE (e ON
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
ZE-RF ZZ2-0F ZB-R§ ZT-1F ZEB-X§ —T-hn¥f ZEB-RF —T-0%
HK$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$'000 HK$’ 000 HK$'000
TET TET TERT TRT THERT THT TET THT
Full Ever Industrial
Company Limited
(note g) Hong Kong
EREEXERARHitg) BE - 35,000 - 311 - 35,311 1,755 1,750
Notes: BiEt
(a) Peak Zone Group Limited (“Peak Zone”), a private company with (a) Peak Zone Group Limited ([Peak Zone]) & —=X

limited liability, and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
the provision of integrated application. As disclosed in note 4,
the Group has not been in a position to exercise any significant
influence over the financial and operating policies of Peak Zone.
Accordingly, investment in Peak Zone has been designated upon
initial recognition as an available-for-sale financial asset.

TABREERA  HBERARE 2N ERMEN
EISIER o BUANPH FE4RTIRER - N KB & YiPeak
ZoneZ W REEBRITEEARFE - AUt - 1
Peak Zone Z R &I B IR T R U8 E A A H &
MBEE -

S
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18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

(d)

(e)

Help U Credit Finance Limited (“Help U Credit”), a private
company with limited liability, is principally engaged in money
lending. As disclosed in note 4, the Group has not been in a
position to exercise any significant influence over the financial
and operating policies of Help U Credit. Accordingly, investment
in Help U Credit has been designated upon initial recognition as
an available-for-sale financial asset.

Plexson Limited (“Plexson”), a private company with limited
liability, is principally engaged in manufacturing and dyeing
of fabrics and yarns in the PRC. As disclosed in note 4, the
Group has not been in a position to exercise any significant
influence over the financial and operating policies of Plexson.
Accordingly, investment in Plexson has been designated upon
initial recognition as an available-for-sale financial asset. During
the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group disposed of its equity
interests in Plexson through disposal of subsidiaries as disclosed
in note 35.

Forest Investment Company Limited (“Forest”), a private
company with limited liability, is principally engaged in trading
and dyeing of fabrics in the PRC. As disclosed in note 4, the
Group has not been in a position to exercise any significant
influence over the financial and operating policies of Forest.
Accordingly, investment in Forest has been designated upon
initial recognition as an available-for-sale financial asset. During
the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group disposed of its equity
interests in Forest through disposal of subsidiaries as disclosed
in note 35.

A 5-years convertible bond issued by IGOSeating Limited
(“IGQO”), a private company with limited liability which business
is principally engaged in furniture related doings, was acquired
at a face value of HK$50,000,000. The convertible bond carries
fixed interest rate at 0.8% per annum, paid annually, with date
of maturity on 11 December 2016 and is guaranteed by the
beneficial owners of IGO. The Group has the option to convert
the convertible bond to not more than 30% of the equity interest
of the issuers at any time and from time to time before the
maturity date.

As disclosed in note 4, the Group has not been in a position
to exercise any significant influence over the financial and
operating policies of IGO. Accordingly, at initial recognition,
the amounts of the consideration of HK$50,000,000 has been
split between a debt component and embedded derivatives
(i.e. conversion option) at the fair value of approximately
HK$38,097,000 and HK$11,903,000 respectively. Subsequently,
the Group accounted for the debt component as an available-for-
sale financial asset and the embedded derivatives as a derivative
financial instrument.

Hiat

(b)

(c)

(d)

For the year ended 31 March 2016 &2 = — A "F=A=+—HIEFE

18. AItHERE (&)

(#&)

BEAMBERRR ([HAMBD S—RUABRE
ERAE T2REREXD - ROK E4FRE
ARG B B AR S 2 B 7S ROBEBURTT R E R
FE - AL REAMBZRENERERR R
ERAHRHENBEE -

BRAERAE (HERD A—RLAGREELA
FERP RN EME RADE 2 REE IR o S b
AR NEBWENAR 2B IEEBCR
TREEAZE - At - RARZRER B R HERE
WEERAELEMBEE - REE_T—~F=
A=+—BIEFE AKEFBHEWRE R F (FK
ERMEASS)BERBRZRELS -

REREBERAR(RED H—RILABREE
A EERPEANEMEE S ENZ o BT
APTIREE - AEE W EH IR A 7 B 5% KB ERERTT
RERTZE - At - PIREZIRE N B IR R
BEERNBHEVBKEE REBE-T— A=A
=+t—HALFE AEEEBEENBELR (KE
A EESS) #§ E B A4 2 AR H 4

JZHE 850,000,000 TRBEEHRABRAA ([E
B BETZAFHARRES  BED—RAERE
FERARR  EERERMAMEEER - ZURKRE
S(ETERAEF08% BFEIMN—K BT
—ANFE+ZAT— BRI BEEEREE AEE
R AEEEEANEH A 2 BIBEES 15 7] R ESH
IR AT BT AS0%ARAE ©

MM FAFTHEE  AEBEEIHBE 2T B RE
ERRITEEMEATESN - Bt - RUIRHER
S 1%1%50,000,000/%nﬁﬁéﬁ%ﬁﬁf‘&ﬁ;)\ﬂﬁ
AT A (BN B 2B A FED B E AL
38,097,0007% 7T }.11,903,0007% 7T ° E«é AEHE
HEER B ARSIER &M IS & ERGRAR
PTETAEARIWESTEMBIE -
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18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

()

(continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group disposed of
its convertible bond issued by IGO to an independent third party,
and recorded a gain of approximately HK$5,911,000 in the profit
or loss.

A 3-year (extensible for 2 years) convertible bond issued by
Yuet Join Industrial Limited (“Yuet Join”), a private company
with limited liability which business is principally engaged in
manufacturing of electronic generator and related business,
was acquired at a face value of HK$50,000,000 during the year
ended 31 March 2013. The convertible bond carries at fixed
interest rate at 5% per annum, paid semi-annually, with date
of maturity on 10 March 2016 (extensible to 10 March 2018
upon the agreement by both parties) and is guaranteed by the
shareholders of Yuet Join. The Group has the option to convert
the convertible bond to 29.79% of the equity interest of the
issuers at any time and from time to time before the maturity
date.

As disclosed in note 4, the Group has not been in a position
to exercise any significant influence over the financial and
operating policies of Yuet Join. Accordingly, at initial recognition,
the amounts of the consideration of HK$50,000,000 has been
split between a debt component and embedded derivatives
(i.e. conversion option) at the fair value of approximately
HK$47,424,000 and HK$2,576,000 respectively. Subsequently,
the Group accounted for the debt component as an available-for-
sale financial asset and the embedded derivatives as a derivative
financial instrument.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group disposed of
its convertible bond issued by Yuet Join through disposal of
subsidiaries as disclosed in note 35.

A 2-year bond issued by Full Ever Industrial Company Limited
(“Full Ever”), a private company with limited liability which
business is principally engaged in trading of knitted gloves,
was acquired at a face value of HK$35,000,000 during the year
ended 31 March 2014. The bond carries fixed interest rate at 5%
per annum, paid quarterly, with date of maturity on 8 December
2015, extensible for 3-year upon agreement by both parties. The
Group was designated the bond issued by Full Ever as available-
for-sale financial asset. During the year ended 31 March 2016,
the bond issued by Full Ever matured and the Group has been
fully received the principal amount with interest outstanding at
the maturity date.

For the year ended 31 March 2016 &2 =2 — A "F=A=+—HIEFE

18. At HERE (&)

Wizt : (&)

()

(&

piii )

)

REBEE-_Z—XRF=A=+—HLEE AEED
BHASEMBET 2 RRESETBLE =7 -
I A8 25 P 8% 15 495,911,00078 Tt 2 38 35 ©

REBEE-_T—=F=ZA=+t—HLFEKXKAE
50,000,000/ TRIBEREX AR A ([ B8 ]) 3
AZ=FH(JTEHME) ATRRES  B% T —

MEREELAAR  TERENELEHRNEH

X 2 MBEFEESEAEF%  BFF
SN—R FHER-_T-RF=A+TH (KL
BEAEHE—_Z - N\F=A+H) » LABEK

RIEER - AEB AR R E B B 2 3iBER 5 AT 2
REFEIR AT HBIBIEEITA29.79%% % -

BN AT HE AEBELEB® T RL
ERRTEEMNEAZEN - At - RYILRER
B - X {&50,000,0007% T YR E R B 15 R RARDT
AT E (AR EE) CEAAFES SR AL
47,424,000 7T % 2,576,000/ 7T £ & - A& E
HERS IO ARIERIHEEMBEERERAR
PTETEARIETEMBEIA -

REE-—Z—RF=A=+—HIEE -
BEEWE QR GEEARKE35) KHBE
TZABRBRESHE -

REEE
B4 P 8%

REBEE-ZT-—NF=-A=+—ALFEEXEE
35,000,000 T iEERLEEX AR AR ([1EE])
BITZ2F BRI R &S - B — AR EEF
ARE EBREHBFEZ S - LT RRESE
EMNEREBFS%  BEFELXMN—R FHEBR=F
—hAFE+=-ANB  AIEEHFRBEHIF - A%
ERERAETESFEERAIHREHEMBEE - ¥
HE-T—A"F=A=1+—HLFE ' BEMET
ZEHFEREIE  AEEE2HURASERRK
FHAKRERZAE -
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19.

20.

For the year ended 31 March 2016 &2 —Z— "F=A=+—HILFE

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 9. fT&ELWMIE
2016 2015
—NEF —E—RF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET FAET
Embedded derivatives in AR ES < R AXITEZ D
convertible bonds - 9,077
Notes: Hiat -

The amounts represent the fair value of the conversion option
embedded in the convertible bonds as disclosed elsewhere in these
notes to the consolidated financial statements.

The derivative financial instruments were measured at fair values
at the end of reporting period. The information for the fair value
measurement is disclosed in note 7(i) in these consolidated financial

statements.

No unrealised gain or loss on derivative financial instruments had
been recognised in profit or loss during the year (2015: Net unrealised
loss of approximately HK$4,767,000) as the derivatives embedded in
the convertible bonds have been disposed of during the year.

MZEGEPBHRRMERTHRE  ZEFBRI AR
BFFATIRA Z AR A E R 2 A F{E -

MTESMTADUREPREREZAFENE - FH
RFEFEZERNZEHEE P IE MR ET()BE -

MTESHMIAZ ASHEEIAEBFECREAFE (=
T—hF : KRB EEFEN4,767,000%5 T) BBk A
HER o

FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD FOR TRADING 20. B EBE B EE
2016 2015
—E-XF —T—hF
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
FHERT FHETT
Listed equity securities in Hong Kong, REBEMZREES - HATE
at fair value 524,308 38,699

The fair values of these listed securities are determined based
on the quoted market bid prices at the end of each reporting

period.

The Group has pledged certain financial assets held
for trading with carrying amounts of approximately
HK$48,135,000 (2015: nil) to secure margin payables as
disclosed in note 25.

EQ%J: {nf%?z N ETZE @RS R ZHR
5B

a0 BT E25F7 #E B8 - AN & [ % [ {E 4948,135,000
BIL(ZE—RAF B ZETHEEBEZHBE
EEER  EAEMNRESZERR -
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20. FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD FOR TRADING
(continued)
Details of principal listed equity securities held by the Group
as at 31 March 2016 are as follows:

Name of
investee Place of Number of Percentage of
company incorporation share held interest held
Fi% Fi%
ERENAER A L Re®A BEASY
WLS Holdings Limited (note a) Bermuda 278,990,000 2.19%
EEZRARRR (W) ARE
China 33 Media Cayman 403,622,000 7.01%
Group Limited (note b) Islands
ME==EEEEERAT RE¥S
(Hito)
KPM Holding Limited (note c) Cayman 15,625,000 3.91%
FRERERAR (i) Islands
REHS
RCG Holdings Limited (note d) Bermuda 74,000,000 4.86%
ERSEEE (BR)ARAA BRE
(Hita)
Notes:

A brief description of the business and financial information of the
listed investee companies, based on their latest published annual
report are as follows:

(@) WLS Holding Limited (“WLS”) is principally engaged in
construction business including scaffolding and fitting out,
management contracting services and equipment installation and
maintenance services. The audited consolidated loss attributable
to shareholders of WLS for the year ended 30 April 2015 was
approximately HK$7 million (2014: approximately HK$61 million).
At 30 April 2015, the audited consolidated net asset value of
WLS was approximately HK$298 million (2014: approximately
HK$93 million).

For the year ended 31 March 2016 &2 —Z— ~"F=A=+—HILFE

20. FEBEEZMBEE (&)

Cost

RA
HK$'000
THT
23,756

53,997

25,460

18,500

AREBEMFHZEIELMEREES ZFBOT

Net assets Dividend

Accumulated attributable received

Unrealised market to the during
gain/(loss) value investments the year
AER REREML £
B3/ (B8 i KERE BHRE
HK$' 000 HKS' 000 HK$ 000 HK$' 000
TAL TEL TEL TEL
66,916 90,672 6,517 31
(1,526) 52,471 45,499 -
25,790 51,250 2,768 -
19,240 37,740 33,618 -

fii -

REAHERE LMARBORTNRZER  ZEQF
ZEBRMBEMBROT

(a) ERZERBERAR (DEE]) FEXRFIRHUESR
IR (BEMEREREERY)  BERAHRE
RBEMEERBEERE REE_ZT—AFMA
=S+RLEFE  ERZRREGEEZESES
#957,000,0005% 7T (== — 4 : 961,000,000
) cRZE—AFMA=18  EREZEELER
BB EFEL5298,000,000/8 7T (ZF—U4F : 4
93,000,000/ L) °
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20. FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD FOR TRADING
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

(d)

China 33 Media Group Limited (“China 33 Media”) is principally
engaged in operation and provision of advertising services
of printed media and audio programs for railway networks,
and outdoor advertising spaces on air traffic control towers
at airports, trains and railway stations in PRC. The audited
consolidated loss attributable to shareholders of China 33
Media for the year ended 31 December 2015 was approximately
RMB39 million (2014: approximately RMB61 million). At 31
December 2015, the audited consolidated net asset value of
China 33 Media was approximately RMB543 million (2014:
approximately RMB147 million).

KPM Holding Limited (“KPM”) is principally engaged in the
design, fabrication, installation and maintenance of signage and
related products. The audited consolidated profit attributable
to shareholders of KPM for the year ended 31 December 2015
was approximately Singapore Dollars (“S$”) 0.17 million (2014:
approximately S$2 million). At 31 December 2015, the audited
consolidated net asset value of KPM was approximately S$12
million (2014: approximately S$5 million).

RCG Holdings Limited (“RCG”) is principally engaged in the
provision of biometric and RFID products and solution services.
The audited consolidated profit attributable to shareholders of
RCG for the year ended 31 December 2015 was approximately
HK$147 million (2014: loss of approximately HK$98 million). At
31 December 2015, the audited consolidated net asset value of
RCG was approximately HK$692 million (2014: approximately
HK$238 million).

20. HFE

(b)

For the year ended 31 March 2016 &2 = — A "F=A=+—HIEFE

BEoUWBREE (&)

B (&)

FRE==EHEEEFRAB(THFE==FK]) x
ERPBERELEREMEEANERBKNTEE
RABELIRG R EIEETE - LA RS RIBHEISHM
ZEEGIE  NBERABIHZEINEEL - REEZ

T—RAF+-_A=+—BLEE HE=="FH%
2%%@%@%&@@%?%%Aﬁmwomom
T (ZZE—F : HARKGE1,000,0007T) c R=F
*£$+:H:+*E'¢IEE%RZ%%&@
AEBEFEN B ARE543,000,000T (= F — M
F : 9 AR #147,000,0007T) °

HEZERBRAR ([HE]) TR FRT - ®UE -
TERBEESERERER RBEE-Z—AF
ZA=T—BLEE HEIZRIEGLLEZ
4R 6 5 A 49 A170,000%T pns o ([FT N3 c]) (=
=T — U4 : 492,000,000 M TT) - R=F—HE
TZA=1+—H ZREZEERGEEEFENA
12,000,000% N3 7T (= Z —PU4E : 495,000,000%T
M) -

RBHEHEE(ER) BRAR ([ EAHEHFEER])
TEREREAYH P RRFIDE @ A RBRS
ERE - RBE-_Z—HAFE+_A=+—ALHF
B ZBEHEEZRREGHEEREEHINA
147,000,000/ 7T (== — P44 : E5184798,000,000
BIL) cR-_BE—RAE+-_A=+—0 ZBHIE
KB I8 FRiRE A EFEX /692,000,000 7T
(ZZ — 94 : 49238,000,000/%7T) °
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21. PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENTS 21. AEEFMBFEXTEREZHE

HELD BY THE GROUP

Pursuant to the requirements stipulated in Chapter 21.12 of

RIFETRBNE2112162 8 F - AEBBWER

the Listing Rules, the Group discloses its list of all investments T RFRZZ—AF=A=+—HEBEERRA

with a value greater than 5 per cent of the Group’s gross

assets and at least the 10 largest investments as at 31 March EBBIT :

2016 and 2015 respectively as follows:

As at 31 March 2016

R-ZB-AF=A=1t—H

SEEERES%ZIBRERR k& P10EZK

Dividend/

Fair Interest

Name of investee companies Cost value received

2 W Ex

EREATER D% AFE  REFE

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

FHET FTHET FTAET

WLS Holdings Limited (note 20(a)) ERZERER DA (H7220(a)) 23,576 90,672 31

Peak Zone Group Limited (note 18(a)) Peak Zone Group Limited (#7:#18(a)) 75,000 55,750 =

China 33 Media Group Limited (note 20(b)) HE=Z=EHEEEERRA (Fi2006)) 53,997 52,471 =

KPM Holding Limited (note 20(c)) HRERARA B (A1220(c)) 25,460 51,250 =

Help U Credit Finance Limited (note 18(b)) HAHMBEERAR (f1:F18(d)) 50,000 50,000 =

RCG Holdings Limited (note 20(d)) RBHEEE (ER) BR DR (A220()) 18,500 37,740 =

Suncorp Technologies Limited MR AR AR 57,139 32,508 -

L & A International Holdings Limited 2 BB E R A A 25,474 31,360 =

China Jicheng Holdings Limited B SRR B IR A A 33,916 31,012 =

SEEC Media Group Limited HAEEEEERAA 21,834 29,210 =
As at 31 March 2015 R-E-E5=HA=1+-—H

Dividend/

Fair Interest

Name of investee companies Cost value received

2 W E

EREARER B A AYE BRE/FS

HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

FTHET FAET FAET

IGO Seating Limited (note 18(e)) SEREER AR (H:Z18(a) 50,000 54,565 398

Yuet Join Industrial Limited (note 18(f)) BHREEBRDR (M1F18() 50,000 52,977 2,500

Plexson Limited (note 18(c)) BEER AR (HZ18(c) 45,000 38,750 =

Full Ever Industrial Company Limited (note 18(g)) BEEEXHRAA (M:718(9)) 35,000 35,311 1,750

Forest Investment Company Limited (note 18(d)) BEREBRAR (M1iF18(d)) 34,800 35,645 =

Town Health International Medical Group Limited FREBEEEREEAR AR 15,630 28,590 -

Hao Wen Holdings Limited B R B R A A 8,180 2,644 =

WLS Holdings Limited (note 20(a)) ERZERARAR (MiF200a)) 4,053 6,641 =

China New Economy Fund Limited FEHEERE AR AR 1,201 824 =

*

which have been listed above.

As at 31 March 2015, the Group only held nine investments

B UKEE2IRNE -

* RZZE-—AF=A=+—H AEREIFENER
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22. OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND

22. HtEWRKIE - AARERRE

DEPOSITS
2016 2015
—E—-XE —T—RF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET FE T
Interest receivable from debt securities EWERZES 2 FE - 2,558
Other receivables H {th & I 5K IR 135,937 136,823
Receivable from other financial institution & U E {th & B #4% 2018 1,749 1,077
Deposits paid Effike 647 711
Financial assets g EE 138,333 141,169
Prepayments TE B 8 97
138,341 141,266

Other receivables represent the consideration receivable

arising from the disposal of available-for-sale investments

through disposal of subsidiaries.

AR E RIRITHEE H4918,488,0008 70 (=
— A F : 18,491,000/8 70) AE L EME © I FEA

ERASEERZERY -
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23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 23. HERBEEEEY
2016 2015
ZE-XKF —T-hF
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FEx T
Cash and bank balances Re RBITHERT 141,732 6,080
Deposits at other financial institution RE M & B 2 175K 83,114 69,151
224,846 75,231
Included in cash and cash equivalents were approximately STABRE RIBSFEYE H418,488,000/8 7T (=
HK$18,488,000 (2015: HK$18,491,000) denominated in USD, T —AhF :18,491,0008T) AETTEME © ML IE
a currency other than the functional currency of the relevant NERSEEE 2 NEEE -
group entity.
The effective interest rate of the deposits range from 0.01% to GERZEBRFNENF0.01EZ05E(ZZE—H
0.5% (2015: 0.01% — 0.5%) per annum and all of them have a F:0.01EZ05F) ' FTEERRIIAZRERFIIRN

maturity within three months from initial inception. =@ARNEIE -
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24. DISPOSAL GROUP HELD FOR SALE 24. HEEHEZHEER

On 31 March 2015, the Company entered into the agreement
with Perfect Scheme Limited, an independent third party,
pursuant to which the Company has conditional agreed to
sell 100% of the issued share capital of Garron International
Strategic Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
at the consideration of HK$39,000,000, which will be satisfied
by HK$1,000,000 in cash and issuance of 76,000,000 shares
of Lerado Group (Holding) Company Limited, a holding
company of Perfect Scheme Limited, which shares is listed on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Disposal”).
Accordingly, all the assets and liabilities attributable to Garron
International Strategic Limited and its subsidiary (“Disposal
Group”) have been classified as a disposal group held for sale
and are presented separately in the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2015. The Disposal Group
was not a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operation, therefore, the Disposal was not classified
as discontinued operation. As the net proceeds of disposal
are expected to exceed the net carrying amount of the
relevant assets and liabilities, no impairment loss has been
recognised. The transaction was completed on 17 April 2015
as set out in note 35(a).

RZZE—RAF=A=+—08 ARAE—FIF=
73 Perfect Scheme Limiteds] 3\2 — 815 @ itk -
ARAIERGERELRERAR A —AEEWRE QA
FHBEBRRBRERAREHMEEHTRE  RER
39,000,000/ 7T  #5 LA3R 1,000,000 7T & 31T
76,000,0000% £k & B (2R BIR ARt 273
AXM(THEEFE]D - BEAEE ZER) GRAA]
JiPerfect Scheme LimitediZfR A7) + HRHEEH
BEERZMBERAR LM - Bt - ZEBEEER
BERAARAEMBAG ([HESE]) 2MBEE
ERBBESERBELEZHESBET - I
RZE-—RAF=A=T—HAZEBEEHBRIEXF
B2 At HEFHEWHFBT FEXZHR
MR HEEET @ BRAERIELEEHE
%o BARBHAEHEMSRBEFHEAEREAEE
REBBEzREFE  RIERERREERE - 2H
REERZT—HFMA T+t B IS M T
35(a) °
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24,

25.

DISPOSAL GROUP HELD FOR SALE
(continued)

At 31 March 2015, the major classes of assets and liabilities
classified as held for sale are as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2016 &2 —Z— ~"F=A=+—HILFE

24. FEEEZHESRHE (&)

RZEBE-—RAF=A=+—H DBERFEHEEZ
TEZERBERINOT

HK$'000

FH&T

Property S 7,720

Investment properties "EME 20,694

Other receivables, prepayment and deposit ~ Efh EUFRIA BN KRB ML S 2

Cash and cash equivalent HeEMREEEY 4,253

Total assets classified as held for sale DERBFEHECBREE 32,669
Accrual and total liabilities classified as DERBRFEHECETERARERR

held for sale 216

MARGIN PAYABLES

Amount due to securities broker represents margin loans
arising from the trading of listed investments which are
repayable on demand. No ageing analysis is disclosed in
respect of account payable due to securities broker. In opinion
of the directors of the Company, an ageing analysis does not
give additional value in view of the Group’s business nature.

25. B REE

ENBLSRLHBAREER EMRESIBZRESR
&% EFW%JV\Q XTI BRI EE - W E3h
ENESFCLEERBERRON - ARFEER
BOREDTHASEXBEEMS TS ENE
SMETE e
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26. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets
recognised and movements thereon during the year.

For the year ended 31 March 2016 &2 —Z— "F=A=+—HILFE

26. ELEBIIR

ERBZIBECHBABEREERENAFE
ZEBEHHEIIMT -

Net
unrealised
gain on
financial
assets held Tax
for trading losses Total
FEHEZ
MBEEZ
RER L FH RIEEE -
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$’ 000
FET THIT THEIT
At 1 April 2014 RZZE—MNFEm™A—H - - -
Charged to profit or loss for the year ~ FRREFHK 2,503 - 2,503
At 31 March 2015 and at 1 April 2015 R=-Z—RAF=A=+—
RZZT—HFMA—H 2,503 - 2,503
Charged to profit or loss for the year AR B HER 11,246 (5,645) 5,601
At 31 March 2016 R-ZFB-RE=ZA=+— 13,749 (5,645) 8,104

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately HK$100,954,000 (2015:
HK$65,100,000) available for offset against future profits.
A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
approximately HK$34,214,000 (2015: nil) of such losses. No
deferred tax assets have been recognised in respect of the
remaining HK$66,740,000 (2015: HK$65,100,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profits streams. All unrecognised tax
losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has deductible
temporary difference of approximately HK$22,298,000 (2015:
nil) arising from the net unrealised loss on financial assets
held for trading. No deferred tax assets has been recognised
in relation to such deductible temporary difference as it is not
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary difference can be utilised.

P SRS HA T A5 R - RS B A 0] 4R 8 R 2R A
Z AR B) R T IE B 18 49 2100,954,0008 T (=&
— R F : 65,100,000/ 1) - EBL A AEIEFR L
34,214,000 T (=T — 1 F : T) BRELETE
BE BRARRENREETRMG  HARERBT
66,740,000/ 7t (== — A 4 : 65,100,000/ 7t )
BREERBEE - A RERTEBIES AL
MR BREE 4 -

RREREGERE A5SEHBFER/RELEEZH
BEEZABRBEFEEEZANBEER =8
#4)/22,298,0008 L (ZE—HF : ) c ARD
X A B Tt BT AR B 2= KR ENAS R 40 2 FE ER B i A
{EFIR - MARE BRI N TR EZHEERET
RIBEE °
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2015/16 Annual Report

£ W

NE=ZA=t—HLEE

27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. B
Number of Number of Number of
ordinary ordinary ordinary
shares of shares of shares of
HK$0.20 each ~ HK$0.01 each ~ HK$0.05 each
SREE020Ex SKRAELVET SREESET
EERYE EERYE EERYE
'000 '000 '000 HK$'000
T T T THEL
Authorised: i
At 1 April 2014, at 31 March 2015 RZZ-NEMA-H -
and at 1 April 2015 ZE-RE=A=+-Bk
“Z-hEEA-H 6,000,000 - - 1,200,000
Capital reduction and BRI R Bk (7 4 (A tc)
sub-division of share (note c) (6,000,000) 120,000,000 - -
Share consolidation (note ) RiA& bt (e - (120,000,000) 24,000,000 -
At 31 March 2016 RZE-RE=A=1-H - - 24,000,000 1,200,000
Issued and fully paid: EETREE
At 1 April 2014 RZZ-NENA—R 581,580 - - 116,316
Issue of shares under open offers (note a) REARREETRG (Hita) 290,790 - - 58,158
Issue of shares under placement (note b) REREETRN (Hits) 43,000 - - 8,600
At 31 March 2015 and at RZE-RF=A=+—-REK
1 April 2015 “Z-REEA-A 915,370 - - 183,074
Capital reduction and BIRBRA R Ik O 17 4 (A ite)
sub-division of share (note c) (915,370) 915,370 - (173,920)
Issue of shares under BRERERARM (M)
placement (note d) - 130,000 - 1,300
Share consolidation (note ) Rip &bt (Hizte) - (1,045,370) 209,074 -
Issue of shares under open offers (note ) REARBERTRG (W) - = 1,672,592 83,629
At 31 March 2016 R-E-RE=A=1-H - - 1,881,666 94,083
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27. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

On 2 July 2014, 290,790,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.20 each
in the Company were issued at a subscription price of HK$0.20
per share by way of open offer. The net proceeds amounted
to approximately HK$56,271,000 which are used for future
investments opportunities of the Group and general working
capital of the Group. These new shares rank pari passu in all
respect with existing shares.

On 19 November 2014, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement to subscribe a total of 43,000,000 shares of HK$0.20
each in the Company to Cashcow Development Limited at a
price of HK$0.345. The net proceeds from the subscription
are used for the general working capital of the Group and for
future investments pursuant to the investment objectives of the
Company. These new shares rank pari passu in all respect with
existing shares.

On 20 January 2015, the Company proposed to effect the
capital reduction of issued shares and sub-division of unissued
shares which has become effective on 21 May 2015. The capital
reduction of issued shares and sub-division of unissued shares
involved the following:

(i)  the paid-up capital of each of the issued shares be reduced
from HK$0.20 to HK$0.01 per issued share by cancelling
the paid-up capital to the extent of HK$0.19 per issued
share by way of a reduction of capital, so as to form new
shares with par value of HK$0.01 each;

(i) the credit arising from the capital reduction be applied
to offset the entire accumulated losses of the Company
as at the effective date of the capital reduction with the
remaining balance of such credit (if any) to be transferred
to the capital reduction reserve account of the Company
or other reserve account of the Company which may be
utilised by the directors of the Company as a distributable
reserve in accordance with all applicable laws and the
memorandum and articles of association of the Company
and as the board of directors considers appropriate; and

(iii) immediately following the capital reduction, each of the
authorised but unissued shares with par value of HK$0.20
each be subdivided into twenty unissued new shares with
par value of HK$0.01 each, and such new shares shall rank
pari passu in all respects with each other and have rights
and privileges and be subject to the restrictions contained
in the memorandum and articles of association of the
Company.

For the year ended 31 March 2016 &2 = — A "F=A=+—HIEFE

27. BR7 (%)
Hist -

(a)

R-ZE—MELA-H ARAELHBENUR
B2 {8 5 §20.207% JT % 77290,790,000/% & i% @ (&
0208 T ZARAR LB - B RBFEHAELD
56,271,000/ 7T * AEAREBARRIZRERK S RAE
E—REEES  ZETRNESHEEBF RN
ZHERSE -

RZZE—MmMFE+—A+hIB ARAIREW
& LA0BASB Tz BRAF R R EERAR AR
#£1743,000,0008% & IR E{E0.208 7T 2 A A & R 15
NERE - RESEMEIEFERAEAERZ
—REEES  URBEBARARZKREBZRER
RIBE - ZEFTROESHFEAEBRERNEZERE
M e

R-T—RE—A-+8  AATRBHREET

B 2 RARFARETRN  YER-_F—HF

AA=+—BAEXR - HURE BITRO 2 A KA 4l
REBETERMDE R TIIEE

(i) FERARHIR A EE SRS BTRMO0.19
BILZHRBEAMESREBETROD ZHR
B A B & A% 2 8 17 A £90.2078 T IR £0.01
BT - MK SR EEC.0VE T 2 #AR D

(i)  FERRASHEIR M E 4 2 &R B EREA R FR
ARSI A3k B B 2 2 30 25T 518 - ki
BRZ AR (207 ) B AR A 8] 2 BRAS Bl R i
BRI AAREZSRIBEMEEREMNRARA
RIZHABERAMRAARESTERAAE
ZIBRAERF D IRFEET AR Z AR E
HibfFEEERE : &

(i) EBERABIRIZ @ 1§ & RE(E.20/8 T 2%
EERBITROSERAR - TREREE
0.01B 7L 2 REFTH A » T F B
WZHESTEEZEREMMA - RIEFA
N B AR T AR KA R A R PR AR N S A
AREPRERBIPTRR -
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27. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(d)

(e)

On 21 May 2015, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement to issue and allot a total of 130,000,000 shares of
HK$0.01 each in the Company to Wonder Time Holdings Limited
at a price of HK$0.275. The net proceeds from the subscription
will be used for the general working capital of the Group and for
future investments pursuant to the investment objectives of the
Company. These new shares rank pari passu in all respect with
existing shares. This transaction has been completed on 2 June
2015.

An ordinary resolution was passed at an extraordinary general
meeting held on 11 December 2015 approving the share
consolidation on the basis that every 5 issued and unissued
shares of the Company of HK$0.01 each were consolidated into
1 consolidated share of the Company of HK$0.05 each which
became effect on the same date.

On 19 January 2016, 1,672,592,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.005 each in the Company were issued at a subscription
price of HK$0.25 per share by way of open offer. The net
proceeds amounted to approximately HK$410,866,000 which
are used for future investments opportunities of the Group and
general working capital of the Group as stated in the prospectus
issued by the Company dated 24 December 2015. These new
shares rank pari passu in all respect with existing shares.

For the year ended 31 March 2016 &2 =2 — A "F=A=+—HIEFE

27. RA ()
Wit - (&

(d)

RZTE—RAFAAZ+—H ARAFILRER
% A0.2758 T 2 B& 31T R AL 3 & #£130,000,000
& G AR EE0.01% TR 9 T Wonder Time Holdings
Limited - REEIBZ E KRB FEBEBIEAEE
Z—REEER  ARBBAARZKREBZRE
RKKE - ZFHRONSHEHRRERHEER
Ll c EEXRZGER-_ZT—AFANA_HTK °

—EHEBREREN _T-—HF+ A+ —HET

77

ZBEREHAS ERGRE  YRFABER AR
BRMERSARAAREELIEBITZEHEITR
RBEITEMEHR/ARR —REREE0.05E T

BH RN EEETRDA B -

RZT—A"FE—A+NB ARABSBAHAEE
2 %% & B 5 R0.25/%8 JT % 171,672,592,000/% &
iR {B0.005/8 w2 @R - TS RIBFHA R
410,866,000/ 7T * B M & & I 1& A A 2 7 Fr Tl
FHHACT —AFT-A-tMBAZBRERM
HAEBZ KRB ST RIEAEE —REEE
& ZEMBRMERBERMEMBHEHZERE
H47

o

111



112

China Investment and Finance Group Limited

P E OB B E & B B R 4 7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

?,5'1-\ ’é‘ /E\ZI' i% ﬁ %% |Zﬂ' %I For the year ended 31 March 2016 &2 —Z— "F=A=+—HILFE

28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 28. BRESTE

The Company’s share option scheme (the Scheme), was
adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 29 August
2013 for the primary purpose of providing incentives to
directors and eligible employees. Under the Scheme, the
Board of Directors of the Company may grant options to
eligible employees, including directors of the Company and
its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company.
Additionally, the Company may, from time to time, grant share
options to outside third parties for settlement in respect of
goods or services provided to the Company. No share options
were granted, lapsed or cancelled during the year ended 31
March 2015 and 2016.

The exercise price is determined by the Board of Directors,
and will not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of
the shares on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing price
of the shares for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the shares.

ARRAFERESE ([ZFE D IRER-_F—=
FNAZTNABBZRERT RS TR
MRAEEREERSBEREHER - RIBZ
2 ARREFTEARNAERSEE (BEART
RENBARESR) B TARBEARRRMN ZBK
HE o b SN 0 AR R R]ANE AP BRSE = 7 R R A
B UBEBRTARTANEYMHRYE - REBZE—
Z-AFR-_ZE-REFZA=T—HILEFE I

TEENEEFIET ATSERTIRSE
(VR E B Z B HI(E : (iR OREERL
B AT R A S %A 2 PR E - R n 2@
‘e
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29. RESERVES 29. f#%

Available-

for-sale

investment

Share revaluation

Exchange Accumulated

premium reserve reserve losses Total
AHHERE
hBaE EftfE 2 EXRE  RAEE @t
HK$’ 000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TAL THATL THR THR THR
(note a) (note b)
(Hita) (Hisb)
At 1 April 2015 WZZE-R&NA—H 490,534 7,849 1,044 (160,327) 339,100
Profit for the year EREH - - = 35,690 35,690
Other comprehensive income: Ef AN
Net loss arising on revaluation of FRRSHARLERE
available-for-sale investments during MEEZEBRFE
the year - (19.250) - - (19.250)
Reclassification adjustment relating to BENBHERNEBBHEZ
disposal of foreign operations ENNERE - - (1,044) - (1,044)
Reclassification adjustments relating to ERTRLERENERH
available-for-sale investments disposed LENH AR
during the year - 2,475 - - 2475
Reclassification adjustments relating to FANBARILEEB L
subsidiaries disposed of during the year BN RRE - (10,324) - - (10,324)
Other comprehensive income for the year EREME2ANRS - (27,099) (1,044) - (28,143)
Total comprehensive income for the year FRZENREE - (27,099) (1,044) 35,690 7,547
Capital reduction and sub-division of shares &l JaRE A J B {7 5 4 - - - 173,920 173,920
Issue of shares under open offer REAREEEIRM 334,519 = = = 334,519
Issue of shares under placement RERERNETRR 34,450 = - = 34,450
Transaction costs on open offer REREZRFMA (7,282) - - = (7,282)
At 31 March 2016 R-B-x§=A=1-H 852,221 (19,250) - 49,283 882,254
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E_E—RF=A=+—HBItEE

29. RESERVES (continued) 29. f#fE (&)
Available-
for-sale
investment
Share revaluation  Exchange Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
HHERE
RBEE  EftfE 2 EXRE  RAEE @zt
HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THL THIL THAL THEL THEL
(note a) (note b)
(Hista) (Hisb)
At 1 April 2014 RZE-NERA-A 486,186 5,593 927 (160,519) 332,187
Profit for the year FERET] - - - 192 192
Other comprehensive income: A2 E ks -
Exchange difference arising during the year ~ FREH Z% - - 17 - 17
Net gain arising on revaluation of ERNRERARLERE
available-for-sale investments during MELZERFE
the year - 8,818 - - 8,818
Reclassification adjustments relating to EREAHNERANERH
available-for-sale investments LENDERE
disposed of during the year - (6,562) - - (6,562)
Other comprehensive income for the year EREME2ANRS - 2,256 17 - 2,373
Total comprehensive income for the year FRZENREE - 2,256 17 192 2,565
Issue of shares under placement of shares R EEERHETRLH 6,235 - - = 6,235
Share issue expenses RO ETRY (1,887) - - - (1,887)
At 31 March 2015 RZE-RF=A=1-H 490,534 7,849 1,044 (160,327) 339,100
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29.

30.

31.

RESERVES (continued)

Notes:

(@) The available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve represents
cumulative gains and losses arising on the revaluation of
available-for-sale investments that have been recognised in
other comprehensive income, net of amounts reclassified to
profit or loss when those available-for sale investments are
disposed of or are determined to be impaired.

(b) Exchange differences relating to the translation of the net
assets of the Group’s foreign operations from their functional
currencies to the Group’s presentation currency (i.e. Hong Kong
dollars) are recognised directly in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the exchange reserve. Such exchange
differences accumulated in the exchange reserve are reclassified
to profit or loss on the disposal of the foreign operations.

NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE

Net assets value per share is calculated by dividing the
net assets included in the consolidated statement of
financial position of approximately HK$976,337,000 (2015:
approximately HK$522,174,000) by the number of shares
in issue at 31 March 2016, being 1,881,666,000 (2015:
915,370,000).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015, the Group
had entered into the following transactions with the investment
manager of the Group which, in the opinion of the directors,
were carried out on normal commercial terms and in the

ordinary course of the Group’s business:

China Everbright Securities (HK) Limited

Investment manager’s fee HEKEEHR
Broker fee R
Custodian fee AEE
Interest expenses FERZ

For the year ended 31 March 2016 & Z —Z—~F= A

29.

30.

31.

FEXRESF (FR)BRA

=t—HIL=FE

& ()
At -

(a) AHHEEREEHREBEIARREMCE2EK RS E
RZABHERENEGHELEZ RFHEERE
B EHENFAHBERERNEAHEERE
EERER  RFEESEHIEE

B e

(b) BEAREBIRBZFEEANIBHTEEZIE
BENVELD MELZIERE  SERNEME

EW ST ERRNEL FET RE - BEHEEINE
B REEELFEETOINEFRESER DA
Ei8m o

BEREEFE

BREEFEDNEBEAVBMRARAME 2
& EFER76,337,0008 . (ZE—HF : 4
522,174,000 L) B AR T —R"F=A=+—
BEZ/T{(H 2 E 1,881,666,000/% (Z T — A :
915,370,0008%) A% 14 15 i ©

BEALRS
BHE-_ZT—"FER-_ZF—hAF=A=+—HLHF
B AREBEAEERELEINATRS  EF
R mt“%ﬁﬁ$¢la%¥%@lW&E
T R

2016 2015
—RF —hF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FEx TAT
960 960

7 1,606

- 12

- 66
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31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

N.FHEALRS (&)

Note:

The Company has entered into the agreement with China Everbright
Securities (HK) Limited (“‘EBSHK”) on 6 November 2012, pursuant to
which EBSHK agreed to provide investment management services to
the Company for a period of three years from 6 November 2012, and
extended for further three years ending 5 November 2018.

EBSHK shall be deemed as a connected person of the Company
pursuant to Rule 21.13 of the Listing Rules upon the agreement
becoming effective. The maximum aggregate fee to be payable by the
Group to EBSHK shall not exceed HK$960,000 per annum.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company considered
that the above investment management agreements are in the best
interests of the Company and were entered into on normal commercial
terms, in the ordinary course of business of the Company and that
investment management fee are calculated in accordance with
the above agreements and are fair and reasonable so far as the
Shareholders are concerned.

Remuneration for key management personnel, including amounts
paid to the directors of the Company and certain of the highest paid
employees are disclosed in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

AABNRZZE—=—F+—ANBEFBLAES (FB)
BRAA ([FEXRES DB - Bt - PEEK
BHERABARARRBRETERE 8= ——F+—
ARNBRAAH=F YO SPTH=F HE==-F
—NE+—AARB-

RZ R E - REXKEFBIRE EMARAE21.13
BHREBARRBEATLT AKESFIMFHRELK
FBhHBRA&EEETEHB1#E60,000%8 T ©

ARABUHPTEFRALARAERBERA AR
ABERNS  B-REEER  LRARABHEHB
BB MREGERRB RS LR GRHE - BB
RMEBATAR -

TZEBEABLZHE  BRENTARAESERETA
REFEE ZRARBENEGE M EIRKRMFES
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32.

33.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group has participated in a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all
eligible employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group, in funds under
the control of trustee. Under the scheme, each of the Group
(the employer) and its employees makes monthly contributions
to the Scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance.
The contributions from each of the employer and employees
are subject to a maximum contribution of HK$1,500 per
month since 1 June 2015 and thereafter contributions are
voluntary. No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the
contributions payable in the future years.

The total contributions charged to the consolidated income
statement for the year ended 31 March 2016 amounted to
HK$119,000 (2015: HK$101,000), representing contributions
payable to the Scheme by the Group in respect of the year
ended 31 March 2016.

COMMITMENTS

At the end of reporting period, the Group had minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect
of rented premises which fall due as follows:

Within one year —F R
More than one year but not exceeding

five years

—FUEERFAA

32,

33.

For the year ended 31 March 2016 &2 —Z— ~"F=A=+—HILFE

RIKERGE
AEBRBECRHIERBEF GO SAAER
EEREEZ2MERHTRM MRS (5
gl - FEBEEARBZEEDABALEN
XRAEEZES REFE AKE(EX)HE
EESANEREE AR (ERRCGRHIELES
AHEIRG)) 25%HFFEIEH MR - EBERER
BRAZABIERE T —AF A —BERZI
1,500 T AR - ZHZHRBERMKN - LEE
R YA TR AT AR 18 F B ALK

o

HE-_ZT-—XNEZA=Z1+—HLFERRANK
HMEIG 2 B HEFK119,0008 L (ZF —AHF :
101,000 T) R RAEBREE_T—~"F=

=+ —RBIEFERRG SIS 2 HRK -

AiE

R HMAER  AEERBTTHECER
HRERYEZ AR TIIBARIBZ KERS K
HENT

2016 2015
—E-AF S
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TERT TAT

- 2,052

- 2,052
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34. LITIGATIONS 34. iF
(@) On 31 March 2014, World Fame Investment Limited a) RZZE—WNF=A=+—H ' ARAIZEN

4
I}I

—

(“World Fame”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, as the plaintiff filed legal proceedings against
Double Sky Holdings Limited, Mr. Ying, BERIEHEE
RmEHYER AR (Guangdong Kaisa Weideng Food
Technology Company Limited) and LT BH7E AR
fhAFRAF] (Zhongshan Shi Lebang Chocolate Products
Company Limited) as joint defendants to {31/ 4%
ARABT (Foshan Municipal Intermediate People’s
Court) (the “Court”) for breach of a convertible bond
subscription agreement dated 12 December 2011 (as
supplemented by supplemental agreements dated 8 June
2012 and 27 September 2013 respectively). World Fame
demanded immediate repayment of the total default sum
of HK$80,891,163 plus interest accrued from 31 March
2014 to the date of fully settlement of such amount. On
28 April 2014, upon application of World Fame, the Court
took relevant preservation measures to seal up available/
known assets of the joint defendants.

For further details of the above litigation proceedings,
please refer to the Company’s announcements dated 28
April 2014.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, World Fame has
been disposed of as set out in note 35(c).

BRARAMZREERAR ([HE D) IEARE
AT AR R A RERT (DX ) $EEXRE
EERAR EBELE EREHAEERESE
BERABRFLUTEATTROARBERA
Al(EREEAN) BRERRER  NEBHE
KBHAE—ZE——F+_A+_HzuEK
EHFERAEHE CBHEINAZT —ZF
ANBR=ZFE—=FAA=t+tBZ®H7xH
ZAMR) HRERANERARNSE
80,891,163 LB —E—ME=F=+—
BHRE2HINE@RERHIFHAMRTZ
FE - RZZE—WFMAZ=ZT+/\R  ERE
HHRER FREEARNAREREHEBH
EAMAIAEMEE o

BRALAFAFEFHE  FLHARFRN
“E-NMFEMA -+ NABERZ QM

tHEREBE_E—A"F=ZA=Z+T—HILFE
BELE ARSI FE3SC) °
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35. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 35. HEKMB LT
(@) On 17 April 2015, the Group completed the disposal of (@) ZE—RAFMA+LEH  ANEBEEKDEW
100% equity interests in Disposal Group as set out in H2AFTH L EEE 2 2 AR o
note 24.
REEERRACEEREENT @

Assets and liabilities recognised at the date of

disposal were as follows:

HK$'000
FBT
Property IS 7,720
Investment properties wEYZE 20,694
Other receivables, prepayments Hib W sRIE BARERES
and deposits 2
Cash and cash equivalent REeRBESEEY 4,253
Accrual and total liabilities classified DHEAFIEHECETERRREE
as held for sale (216)
Net assets disposed of BEHEEEFE 32,453
Consideration received 2K E
Cash consideration ReNRE 1,000
Share consideration R E 47,120
48,120
Gain on disposal of Disposal Group HEHEEEZE R
Consideration received BIRRE 48,120
Net assets disposed of BHEEESFE (32,453)
Cumulative exchange differences in EHWBARKEZES
respect of the net assets of HEMEETERFCELERE
subsidiaries reclassified from equity BHESERSERER
to profit or loss on loss of control of
subsidiaries 1,044
16,711
Net cash outflow arising on disposal HEEEZFRERER
Cash consideration ReNRE 1,000
Less cash and cash equivalent BEHEZREREEEEY
disposed of (4,253)

(3,253)
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35. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(b)

On 10 May 2015, the Group disposed of Qifeng Holdings
Limited (“Qifeng”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the

(b)

Group, which was principally engaged in investment

For the year ended 31 March 2016 &2 —Z— "F=A=+—HILFE

35. HEME 2R (4)

—ET-AFREATH AEELHEAKER
ENBARERZERERAR (TRAD » &
REBREREZBEES MEMBIER

holding and the major asset its held is the investment BEANBEZERE (FRMHE18(d)) ° BRE
in Forest as disclosed in note 18(d). The assets and REEEEZEERBENOT ¢
liabilities of Qifeng on date of disposal were as follows:
Assets and liabilities recognised at the date of REEERRIZEEREBNT :
disposal were as follows:
HK$'000
FHExT
Available-for-sales investments A HERE 35,645
Net assets disposed of BEHEEEFE 35,645
Consideration received ERKE
Cash consideration HENRE 36,000
Gain on disposal of Qifeng HERE 2w
Consideration received B KRB 36,000
Net assets disposed of BEHEEEFE (35,645)
Cumulative exchange gain on EHMBARREES -
available-for-sale investments AHEERE 2 Rt 2 E R
reclassified from equity on loss Bt =B DR
of control of subsidiary 845
1,200
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEELZFHERA
Cash consideration HERE 36,000

HMEHEZHERREEEY

Less cash and cash equivalent
disposed of

36,000
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35. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 35. HEM B LR (&)
(c) On 15 August 2015, the Group disposed of World Fame, (c) ZE—AFNATHB  AEELEAEE
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group. The assets and 2EWNBARIER HENLEEERBZEE
liabilities of World Fame on date of disposal were as RaEmT :
follows:
Assets and liabilities recognised at the date of RHEEEHRIAZEEREBUNT :

disposal were as follows:

HK$'000
FHERT
Other receivable H b fE W KT8 1
Income tax payables FET FRSBE (66)
Net liabilities disposed of BEHE&EFE (65)
Consideration received 2 RRE
Cash consideration HeNE 10,000
Gain on disposal of World Fame HEHE 2R
Consideration received B KR (E 10,000
Net assets disposed of BHLEEEFE 65
10,065
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEELXZFEERA
Cash consideration HE&NRE 10,000
Less cash and cash equivalent BEHEZRERREEEY
disposed of -

10,000
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35. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(d)

On 18 September 2015, the Group disposed of Profit
Eternal Global Investments Ltd (“Profit Eternal”), a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Group which principally engaged
in investment holding and the major asset its held is the
convertible bonds issued by Yuet Join as disclosed in
18(f). The assets and liabilities of Profit Eternal on date
of disposal were as follows:

Assets and liabilities recognised at the date of
disposal were as follows:

(d)

For the year ended 31 March 2016 &2 —Z— "F=A=+—HILFE

35. HEME 2R (4)

—E-RAFAATNA AEEHEAREE
2EMBRAFEREKEERRAF ([F
Bl)  FEZENERETRER  MEM
BZEBBERBEHAET 2 TRRES (H
RHTEE18(F) - FIEREEER 2 EERE
(ERUNNE

REEEERAZEEREGNT :

HK$'000
FHET
Available-for-sales investments AHEERE 50,355
Derivative financial instruments PTEMKETA 2,622
Net assets disposed of BEHEEEFE 52,977
Consideration received 2 WRRE
Cash consideration HeNE 10,000
Deferred cash consideration BEERERE 40,000
50,000
Gain on disposal of Profit Eternal  H&fI18 2 # %
Consideration received BEWRRE 50,000
Net assets disposed of BEHEEEFE (52,977)
Cumulative exchange gain on BB AR REES -
available-for-sale investments AEEREZ Bt EH g
reclassified from equity on loss BB DR
of control of subsidiary 2,930
(47)
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEELZFHRERA
Cash consideration HERE 10,000

Less cash and cash equivalent
disposed of

HMEHEZHERREEEY

10,000
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35. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(e)

On 25 September 2015, the Group disposed of Champion (e)

Elite Holdings Limited (“Champion”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Group which principally engaged in
investment holding and the major asset its held is the
investment in Plexson as disclosed in note 18(c). The
assets and liabilities of Champion on date of disposal

were as follows:

Assets and liabilities recognised at the date of
disposal were as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2016 &2 =2 — A "F=A=+—HIEFE

35. HEME 2 R ()

T -RFAAZTHA AKEEER
& [E 2 & [} B 2 F]lChampion Elite Holdings
Limited ([ Champion]) * ChampionE Z{¢t =
REERER  MAMBZEEEERNA
RZEE (P KFE18(c)) ° ChampionA i
EERACEERBREAT

REEEERIAZEEREGENT :

HK$'000
FHERT
Available-for-sales investments AHEERE 38,750
Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE 38,750
Consideration received 2 WRRE
Cash consideration HERE 8,000
Deferred cash consideration RER e RE 27,000
35,000
Loss on disposal of Champion i &ChampionZ 58
Consideration received 2R (E 35,000
Net assets disposed of BEHEEEFE (38,750)
Cumulative exchange loss on EHHBARKEZES -
available-for-sale investments AEHEREZ Rt 2 EH B
reclassified from equity on loss S EN S A
of control of subsidiary (6,250)
(10,000)
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEELZFHEER
Cash consideration HENRE 8,000

BMEHEZRE RREEEY

Less cash and cash equivalent
disposed of

8,000
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 &&Z —Z— E=A=+—HItFE

35. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 35. HEKME LT (&)

(f) During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group
disposed of certain wholly-owned subsidiaries which did
not principally affect the results for the year or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. The
assets and liabilities of those subsidiaries on date of
disposal were as follows:

Assets and liabilities recognised at the date of
disposal were as follows:

®)

REBEE-T—R"F=A=+—HLEFE " &
SEHEETTITEEANELAFEEELE
KRAREEEFEZEEBHZ22ENBR
Al ZEMBRARANLEEEAZEERERE
IR

REEEHRIAZEERBENT :

HK$'000
FHExT
Cash and cash equivalents ReRFeEEY 9
Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE 9
Consideration received EWRKRE
Cash consideration ReRE 110
110
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEKB AR ZG%
Consideration received 2R (E 110
Net assets disposed of BEHEBEESE (9)
101
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEELZFHERA
Cash consideration REeRE 110
Less cash and cash equivalent BELEZHERECEED
disposed of (9)

101
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36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 36. AR TEMB LR ZFHE
OF THE COMPANY
Details of principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2016 are as RZE—RNF=ZA=+—HBHZETEHNBRRFIE
follows: HHwT
Particulars
Place of of issued
Name of subsidiary incorporation share capital Interest held Principal activities
MELRER HEMARIE BRITRAFEE g zEsR FEEK
2016 2015
—B-XE —ZT—FEF
Directly hold:
BEERFH:
Rich Fortune Investment Limited = Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100% Investment holding
HK$1
BXREBRAF BB TER1B T 100% 100% ®EEZER
Garron Consultancy Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100% Trading of securities
HK$1
=REMBRAA e EER1BTT 100% 100% HHEEHE
China Investment and Financing  Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100% Trading of securities
Limited HK$1
PEREIRERR DA B EBBR1B T 100% 100% #EHEE
New Express Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100% Investment holding
HK$1
MBIREBRAR BB TmR1B T 100% 100% HREZERK
Jetland Global Investments Ltd The British Ordinary shares 100% 100% Investment holding
Virgin Islands US$1
REBRZHFS LBR1ET 100% 100% HEER
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, ERAAARRMBRARINESERAEEAFER
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results FREXEIBNASBEEEFEZEZES D - £
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets ERA I EMHBRARFBESBER TR -
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.
None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding RERRFREAEERE - BEKNEAEES EM
at end of the year or at any time during the year. MAREEZERES -
As at 31 March 2016, all subsidiaries of the Company are RZZT—R"FE=ZA=+—H ARAMEHMNEA
wholly-owned. Accordingly, no details of material non- A AEEERE - AL WEZY|ERIEEKE

controlling interests presented. L FIE e
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37. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY 37. KRR Pz HBEH

2016 2015
—E-XEF —ET—hH4&F
Note HK$’000 HK$’ 000
k=3 FERT F#& T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y~ BB M - 709
Investment in subsidiaries RHB AR ZEE 1 1
1 710
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables, prepayments HiEWRIE BNRIBRES
and deposits 67,643 18,307
Amounts due from subsidiaries & U B /BB R Bl 5Kk IE 806,060 474,574
Cash and cash equivalents HeRREEFEEY 77,518 3,592
951,221 496,473
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals st EH 1,190 737
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEATFT B R R 5KIE 6,121 3,836
7,311 4. 573
Net current assets REBEEFRE 943,910 491,900
Net assets EERE 943,911 492,610
Capital and reserves BEAXR#E
Share capital A% 7 94,083 183,074
Reserves ] (a) 849,828 309,536
Total equity M 4B 943,911 492,610

The Company’s statement of financial position was approved

and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 22 June

2016 and signed on its behalf by:

CHAN Cheong Yee

BREZ
Director

EZE

RABZHBRARER - E—RFA -+
AREFSHAERBENE XLHBTIALR

REE

LEE Kar Ying

2|

Director

EZE
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37. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

Note:

(a)

2015/16 Annual Report
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 |2/

For the year ended 31 March 2016 i 2 = — A "F=A=+—HIFE

Movement in reserves during the year

B &L

(a) FARKEZE

37. XD FA 2 HHEH (&)

Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
PR 19 % 1B RitEBE Bt
HK$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET
At 1 April 2014 RZZE—HFMA—H 486,186 (172,436) 313,750
Loss and total comprehensive FREBEBEREE
expenses for the year F &z 4 58 - (8,562) (8,562)
Issue of shares under placement 1R & i & A% () 217 1% 19
of shares 6,235 - 6,235
Share issue expenses R EITHE (1,887) - (1,887)
At 31 March 2015 and R=ZF—RAF=A=+—HE
1 April 2015 - 490,534 (180,998) 309,536
Profit and total comprehensive FR®RMNREE
expenses for the year HZ e - 4,685 4,685
Capital reduction and BIR AR 2 K % 19 45 48
sub-division of shares - 173,920 173,920
Issue of shares under open offer 1R & A i 3 & 217 1 334,519 = 334,519
Issue of shares under placing of R & I (5 21T (D
shares 34,450 - 34,450
Transaction costs on open offer RF#EE 2 X FKA (7,282) - (7,282)
At 31 March 2016 R=-Z—X"F=A=+—H 852,221 (2,393) 849,828
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Year ended 31 March
BE=ZA=1t—BLEE
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
ZE-XF ZZ—hF ZZ-NF —_T-—=F —T—_F
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$ 000
FET FHET FHET FHT FHIT

RESULTS ES
Revenue W 25 2,996 12,187 8,319 7,610 5,411
Profit/(Loss) before tax BRELATE T (EE) 41,222 2,745 (93,408)  (14,595) 610
Income tax expenses Fris i (5,532) (2,553) (154) (169) (250)
Profit/(Loss) attributable to KRAEER A
owners of the Company swmF (E518) 35,690 192 (93,562)  (14,764) 360
Earnings/(Loss) per share (note) &REAN, (EE) (Kiz)
— Basic and diluted (HK cents) —HEARREE (B 6.31 0.02 (71.19) (11.24) 0.31
At 31 March
R=A=+—8H
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
ZE—XF ZE—hF ZT—NF ZT—=F —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000
FET FH T FAT FAT T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERER
Non-current assets ERBEE 105,773 143,214 302,044 310,061 473,706
Current assets MENE = 887,522 382,608 147,205 237,044 72,401
Current liabilities mBEE (8,854) (1,145) (746) (1,007) (1,915)
Non-current liabilities FEnBBEE (8,104) (2,503) — = =
Shareholders’ fund BRES 976,337 522,174 448,503 546,098 544,192
Note: it -
Basic and diluted earnings per share has been adjusted for the Share AEERBFFEZBEREARBERINER T —RAF+=
Consolidation on 14 December 2015 and the Open Offers on 14 January At+HBZBRHREHE-ZSE— A "F—ATHAZAREEM
2016 for the current year and priors years. BATAE -
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